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NOTICE

NOTICE is. hereby given fhat the Thirty Eight Annual General Meeting (AGN) of the
members ¢f Nitkanth Engineering Limited {the Gompany) will be held on Wednesday,
the 29" day of September, 2021 at 4.30 pm at the registered office of the Company at
407, Kalbadevi Road, 3™ Floor, Daulat Bhavan, Mumbai 400 002 to transact the following
business .

Crdinary Buginess:
1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements including audited
consslidated finaricial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 34, 2021, fogether with the reporis of the Board of Directors and the

Auditors therson.

2 To re-appaint & Director in: plage of Mr. Nifin Agrawal {DIN Not $8186528) whe
ratires by rotatien and, .b-e:in._g::eliglbie-, offers himiself for re-appointment,

Special Business : : |
% To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the-following
resefution as Special Resolution ©

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisien of sedfion 186(3) and other applicable
provision of the Companies: Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made
thereunder, including any statutory medification(s) and re-enactments thereof for
fime being in force, subject to the terms of Articles of Association -of the Company
and subject fo such other approvals, consents, sanctions.and permission as may
be necessary, the consent of Ihe members be and is. hereby gccorded to the
Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as "the Board” which terms. shall be
deemed to include any sommitiee of the: Board) for making investments in excess
of the limits specified under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 from time: 1o
time in acquieition of securities of any body corporates or for giving ioans,
guaraniees or providing securities to any body corporate. of other persons. / entity
in india as may be considered appropriate for an amount not excesding Re 250
Crore (Rupees Two Hundred Fifty Crore) not withstanding that such investment
and acguisition fogether with existing investments of the company in all bodigs
corporate, loans and guarantees given and securities provided shall be in excess
of imit prescribed. under section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2018, ie. limit
available to the Company is Sixty percent of ity paid up capital, free reserves and
securties premium account of cne hundred percent of its free reserves. and
securities. premium account whichever is mare




FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, for the purpose of giving -effect to the foregoing
resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized to do -all such acts; deeds
things &nd to take all such sfeps as may be nsdessary or incidental thereto
including but not Timited to- delegation of all or any of its powers. herein conferred
to any committes or any director(s) of the Company ar o setile any questions,
difficulties: or doubts that may arise in this connection without being required to
seek any further clarification, consent -or approval of the members of the
Company,

By order of the Board of Directors of Directors of
Nitkanth Engineering Limited

G. M. Loyalka
Director
{DIN-00299416}

Place: Mumbai __
Date; 1™ September, 2021



NOTES:

1.

. The Annual Report in

A statement pursuant-fo Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (1he Act)
relating to: certain ordinary business and the special business to be transacted at

the 38" Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto. All documents. refetred to in

the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement atong with the Registrar
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholdings and. other

requisite documents:shatl be avaifable for inspection alactronically.
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a miembor entilled o attend and vote
at the AGM 1s.-entitled to appoint proxy to attend and vote on-his / her behalf
and the-proxy need not bethe members.of the Company.

* A person can act as a proxy on hahalf of members not exceeding fifty and

holding in the aggregaie not more than ten percent of the fotal share capital

.of the Comipany, carrying voling rights. A Member holding more thar ten

percent of the total share capital of the Company catrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall riot act 88 & proxy
for-any other person or shareholder.

cluding Notice of AGM has been uploaded on the website af
the Cofhpany . nilkanthengineering.c .in and the same is attached to the.
ernail sentto you for the AGM. The same zan be accessed and downleadfrom the
website of Stock Exchange ~ The BSE Limited at www bseindia.com and from the
website of National Securities Depository Limited at g-voting@nsdl.co in.

. The proxy form duly tompleted and signed should be deposited at the Registered

office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time-fixed for the Meeting.

The Ragister of Members: and Share. Tiansior Register of the Company will
ramain closed from VWednesday, 29" Sectember, 2021 to Tuesday, 2gh
September, 2021, (both days inclusive) for the purpese of AGM.

EVOCTING:

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in compliance with the
provisions of Rule 20 of the Campanies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 and Regulation 44 of SEB! {(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Renuirements) Regufations, 2015, the Company s pieased to announce that all
the businass mentioned in the notice may be: transacted through slectronic voting
system and the Company is providing facility by glectronic means.

For this purpose, the Company has. entered into an sgreement with National
Securities Depository Limited. (NSDL} for facilitating e-voting to enable the
Shareholders of the Company:to cast their votes slectronically.

if) The Board of Directors. of the Company has appointed Mr. Girish Muratka,

Propristor of GIRISH MURARKA & CO. practicing Company Secietaries, Mumbai
to conduct and scrutinize the e-voting process in-a fair and framsparent manner.




7. Theinstruction for shareholder for remote e-vofing are as under _
The way 1o vote elecironicafly on NSDL e-voting system consist of Twe Stans
which are mentioned below:

a) Visit the e-voting webisite of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following.
URL ¢ hifp:/hwww.avoling nsdl.com either arr your Personal Computer or on a.
mobile

b} Once the home page of e-voiing system: is launched, click on the icon "Lagin”
‘which is-available: under ‘Shareholder saction

€) A new screenwill be open. You will hiave to enteryour User 1D, your Password
and verificdtion ¢ade-ag shown on the screen

Step 2 : Castifig'your vote electronally

&) User ID details ars given below:

"Wlanner of holding shares ie Demat | Your User (B 1s !
{NDSL orCDSL)
Or Physical .

“BJFor Members holds: the share in |8 character DP 1D followed by 8 digit

Demate Account-with NDSL. telient 1D for example your DP D is
- | INS00*** and your Client 1D {s 27|
| then your User 1D s IN3QQ¥ q2r->

[B} For WMembers holds The shars in | 16 digit Beneficiary 1D. For example i
i Damate Account'with COSL | your Benefictary 4Dy is j2r++******* then

| your User 1) jg, g

€) Your Password:detalls are given bglow:
) If you are already registered for e-voling, then you can use. your exjsting
‘password to fogin-and cast your vote _ _

Ty If you are ysing NSDL e-voting system for the-first time, your will need to
retriove the 'initial password', your need enter the inifial password and
the system will force you to change your password '

fiiy How to retfiave initial password? K

&) If your emall id is registered a your Demat Account or with the Company,
the initial password is: commurication to you on your email id. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your email box. Open the email and
open the attachment which is in PDF. Open the pdf file. The password to
open the pdf file is your B digit Client 1D for NSDL Account, Jast 8 digit of

- yeur Client il for CDSL Account |

b} If your email id is not registered, your inltial password will be communicated

toyou on-your posial address '

fy ifyou dre unable to retrieve or have not received your inifial password or have
forgotten the password - Click on-'Forgot user detail / password” {if you are
helding the share in-demat account with NSDBL J CHSL) gption: available on
www.evoting.nedl.com . . _

g) After entering your password, Tick -on Agite to “ Terms and conditions” by
selecting onthe check box. _

) Now you have fo elick 6n “Login” button

i} Afteryou click on Login butten, home-pags,




Step 2 Castyour vote electronicali NSDL e-vating system. __
a) Aftersuccessful login at Step 1, yoo will be able to-see Homie Page of g-voling.
Then glick-on Active voting cycle. o o '
b) After click on Active voting eycle, you will be able to see all the Campanies
AEVEN" in witlch you are holding shares and whasé voting oycle ig in active:

status _

o) Select"EVEN" aof the Company for which you wish to caste-your vole

d) Now you are ready fore-voting as ine: voting page opens ) ‘

g) Cast your vote by gelacting appropriate: aption: ie. Asgent or Dissent, ugﬁfy i
modify Number of shares for-which you cast your vote and click-oh-submit and
confirm when profmipted

£ After confirmation, Vote caste successfully will be displayed __

g} You can aiso take the ‘print ewt of your votes: caste by you, by clicking on the

" print out option on the. confirmation page

f) Once you confirmyour vote an the resolution

8. GENERAL INFORMATION FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS

a) The Voting righits. of the members shall be i proportion fo their shares- fully
paid equity capital as onthe cut off date 21% Seplember, 2021

b) The -ewvoting period commences on Sunday, 26"  September, 2021
commentes at 9:00 am and ends on Tuesday, 28" Septernber, 2021 at H:00
pm. At the end of the veting period, the portal where voles are gast ghall
forthwith: be biocked. The cut 'off date for Remote: evoting is. 24 September,
2021

¢) The Board of Directors has appointed Mis Girish Murarka & £o., Pragficing
Company Secretary, having Cerificate of Practice No. 4576 as Scrutinizer to
serutinize the: remote e-voling (nciuding the Ballot Form received. from the
Members who ¢o ot have access to e-voling process) in fair sind transparent
manner.

d} The Scrutinizer shall, immediatsly after the conclusion of veting at 38" AGM,
count the vots cast at the meeting and thereaftar, unbleck the vote east
through e-voting in presence of at lsast wo witness not in the employment of
the Company and submit, nof later than three days of the conelusion of the
meeting, & consolidated Serutinizer's Report of the total vote caste favour or
against the resolufion to the Chairman. or any person autherized by him in
wiriting. : '

&) The Chalrman or the Authorized Representative will declare the resuit of the
yoting {Esvoling and voling. through Baliot Paper), The Said Results and
Scrutinizer's Report will be placed on the websile of the Company

. Name, designation, address, email id and phone no. of the person
responsible to address the grievances connected with facility for voting by
elactronic means. '
Name:- Ms. Shryti Didwania

Designation:- Company Sseretary and Campliance Officer

Address: 407, Kalbadevi Road, 3° Floor, Daulat Bhavan, Mumbai 408 002

Email : nilkanthengineeringltd@gmail.com  szez




Hem No. 3

The pravision of section 186(2) of the Companies- Act, 2013 prescribed the fimit for the
Campany for giving loane, atquisition: of securities of body corporate, guarantees or
provide secarity in connection of loan - upto60% of Ifs paid up capital, free reserves and:
securities. premium acceunt OR 100% eof its free reserves and securities. premium
account whichever is more.

As per section 186(3) of tHe Companies Act, 2013, the Ct:mpany can give loan and
make invesiment, provide guarantees or provide security in connéction with loan in
excess of the Jimit under section 186(2) of the Act, after taking prior approval of
members. of the Company by means of Speciaf Resolution duly passed -at the: General

Mesting of the Company:.

|7 erder to make: optimum use of surplusfunds af the Campany and also o achieve long
term strategic and business objective, the Board 'of Director pioposés to make. uss of
surplus funds for acqulsrﬁbn of shares, giving loans and make investment. which s in the.
beneficial interest of the Company in excess of imits: prescribed under $ection 188(2) of
the Act, Hence Board recommend Special Resolution bndér section 186(:3; of the Act.

None. of the: Director. sther than the Diregtors. proposed to: be appointed (in their
respective resolutions of appaintment), Key Managenal Personnei or their relatives, are

directly 7 indirectly concertied or interested, financial or otherwise in this resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors of Directors of
‘Nilkanth Engineering Limited 3

G. M. Loya!ka
Director
{DIN-00299416)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 1™ Soptember, 2021



Information on Director being re-appointed as required. under regulation 36 of
Sacurities and Exchiangs Board of India (Listing Obligations ahd Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and relevant provision of Secrefarial Standard on
Beneral Meeting (85-2)

Name of Direcior ] Nitin Aganval

| DIN 08186528
[Date of Bith | 73.12.1984°
Relationship  with  other | Ni

Directors irfer-se |
Date of Appointment "G1.08:2018

Expert’in Speciatized Area Marketing
Qualification — | MBA(HR 2nd Mkig)
No, of Equity Shares held in [N ' o
the Company _ 1
Ditectorship in other Public Nil
 Limited Company |
Chairman / Membership of the | N
- Commifies of other Company. |




CIN N L2730EIMH1983PLC029369-

Regd. Dffice: 407, Kalbadevi Road, Diaailat Bhawan, 3’“1~'1uor, Muambai— 400 002,

To,
The Members -
Nitkanth Engineering Limited

BOARD'S REPORT

The Directors of your Company are pleased fo present fheir Thirty Et?hth Annual Report

and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial. yearerided F1°

FINANCIAL RESULTS

March, 2021.

The financial performance: of the Company, for the: financial year ended 31st March,

2021 is summarized below:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Standalone. Consolidated
- Financial Financial | Financial { Financial |
‘Year Year Year Year
| . ) 2020-21 | 2019:20 | 2020-24 | 201520 |
‘Revenue from-Qperations 1595 ] 1782 1595, 17.62
| _ Total Incoms- 45.95 | ~ 17.82 1585 17.82 |
| __Fi'-}ggén'diiura-'_ 8408 | 108.28 | 84.08 ; 100,20
i Profit {Loss) before tax (78145 (8158 [  {78.14) 191.583 |
i Share in Profit /{Loss) of Agsociates - i 154 42 {193.20} |
| Tax Expenses . - - - - - -
. Excess/(Short) Tax prowswns - {0.27):| _ =1 {0.27)
Profit | (Loss) after Tax {78:14) {81.85) |  78.27 1 {285.05)
Other Comprehensive 26.58 2791y 362,78 [ (11,256.41)
incomeliLoss) & . _
Total Compreherisive {51.58) (119,76} 439.05 (11541.46}
Incomef{Loss) for the ysar _ | : _

COVID -19 INMPACT

The: year under review has beer one of the most.challenging year of the Cempany. The
COVID-18 pandemic outbreak which: began in the middle ‘of March, 2020, confinued to
impact the economy threughouf the finarcial year :2020-21. ‘The year was full of
‘urcertainties with slowdown in activities on the ground, The werld was: introduced to the
new normal of lockdowns, centainment zones, work from home with resiricted movemeant

of people and goods.




The Company is taking al necessary measures in-terms of mitigating the impact of the
challenges being faced in the business. it is focused on cenfroliing cost maintaining
fiquidity and closely m shitofing to the operation. The Com pany belisves that it tas. taken
into: account the- impact of knawa evenis afising out of COVID-19 pandemic in the
preparation of financial resuits tesulting out of fair valuation of the investments. The
Company. has not faced any material adversity of its financiai position as at 31% March,
2021 and consigering the other relavant facts and circumstances existing as of that date,
the Company does not anticipate ‘any materal uncertainties which affects its liguidity:
pasition and also ability 1o sontinue as-a going-concerm., However the impact of the global
health pandemic may differ from that estimated 2s.al the date.of appraval of thie Tinanciat
resilts and the Company will continue 1o closely monitor any’ material changes to future
aconomic conditians.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS {IND AS) | |
The Company has adopted Indian Actounting Standards (IND-AS) from Aprl 1, 2019
wiith fransaction date: of Aprl 1, 2018, Accordingly, the Financal Statement for the y&ar

2020-21 have been in aceprdance with IND AS, prescribed under section 133 of the Act,
read with the: relevant rules issued thereunder and the other recognized accounting
practices and policies to the-exient applicable

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
The Company has adopted IND AS for reporting financlal resuits far the year under
review. During tha year under review; the. Company's netted off joss of RS, 78,14,3409/-
bafore tax (Previous Year Net'Loss of Rs, §1,58,202/) and net Comprehensive: lncome
for the year after tax was af. Rs. 430 04,916/~ {Previous year the total Compretiensive
Loss of Ra. 1,15,41,45,8971-)

The Company is:engaged in the business of making of fong term investment and letting
out of immovable praperty. There have heen no material changes in the’business of the
Company during the financial year.

EINANCE |
Your Company has mads provisions for sufficient borrowing facilties to meet its long~
term and short4erm requirement in erder to support the: business:operations.

DIVIDEND ‘
In: view of logs during the year under review, your Direciors do not recommend any
dividend for the:year under feview. '

TRANSFER TO RESERVES URDER RBLACT, 1834

The Company doses not require o transfer any funds to Special Reserve. Funds gnder
RB! Act, 1984 as the Company has. surfendered the Cerlificate of Registration issued by
Reserve Bank of India to carry on Business ag Non-Bariking Finance Company as the
operations of the Company does not satisfy the criteris of assets and income pattern in
Terms: of Press. Release No. 1408-00/4260 dated 08.04,1999 issued by Reserve Bank of
india.




PUBLIC DEPOSIT

During the year, the Company has not.accepled or renewed: any deposit from the: public

ag covered under Section: 73 of the Act read Wwith the Companies {Acceplance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS.

There were no material changes and :commitments. aﬁecﬂng the financial ‘position 6f
the Company occurred between the end of the financiai year to which thesefindncial
statements relate and the date-of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Authorised Share Capital as on 31%' March, 2021 was Rs. 1,25,00,0007-(Rupees

One Crore Twenty Five Lac Only) divided into. 12, 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs: 10/ each.

There has besn no change in the Share Capital of the Company during the financial year
2020-21 ' '

The Issued Share Capital as on '31™ Mareh, 2021 was Rs 1,24,50,000+ (Rupess. One
Crore Twenty Five Lac Only) divided into 42 45 BO0 Ecuity Shares of Rs. 10/eagh.

SUBSIDIARY
As-af the end of the year undet review i:e. on 315‘ March, 2020 arid also as on the.date of
:thls repor, your-Company dées not have any Subsidiary:

;EXTR'A(:"T OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Secttan 92(3) read with Secfion 134(3)(a) of the- Act the Annuai Retum a8
on 315 March, 2021 is available on the website wiww. __Hka the 0.GO:E

Pursuént'-td secttan ‘129{3) of ‘the Cc:mpames Act, 2&1’3 the statemeant containing the
salient featurs of financial statement of Company’s subsidiary, sssagiate -and joint
venturs of the Company are as under:

The Cempany does not have subsidiary Company.

However the Company have Associate companies; the brief detalls of which is being
given hereunder

1. Jatayu Textiles & Industries Limited (Associate: Company)
Jatayu Textiles & Industries Limited {Jatayuy is registered with Reserve Bank of
India.as Non-Banking Financial Company {NBFC}in the category- of the: Lotapany
nof aceepting £ belding public deposifs

The total revenue of Jatayu during the: finangial year 2020-21 was. Rs,1,488.03
Lakh. The Company netted Profit After Tax is Rs, 582.88 Lakhs




‘2, Oairig Online Private Limited {Associate :Ga'm,t:aanyf);,_ o o
Osiris Online. Private Limited (Osits) has paid up capital of Rs. 66,00,000/- and
468s nat have any substantial husiness. _

The fotal revenue of Osiris duting the: financial year 202021 was Rs. 0.30 Lakh.
“The Company net Profit After Taxis Rs. 0.08 Lakhs

4, Sushres Trading Limited {Associate Company)
Sushree Trading Limited (Sustwee) registered with Resenve: Bank of India as Nori-
Banking Financiai Company (NBFC) in the category of the Cempany not
accepting £ holding public depasits

The total revenue of Sushree during the financial year 2020-21 was Rs. 20.05
Lakh, The Company net Loss After Tax is'Rs. 38.58 Lakhs

The Company.does not have any Joint Venture.

The detalls of the Company’s subsidiary, associate and Joint Verture Company s on
31 March, 2021 is given under Annexure 1

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There'was no employes in the company Srawing remuneration i excess of the timits set
out in the Rule 5(2) and 5{3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Menagetial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Further, the disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other detalls as required under
Saction 197{12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies. {Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in the Annual Report
-as “Annaxure-2 *, '

Furthermors, the éiscl’asur&s_giper‘tain-iﬁg to remuneration and Top Ten Employses details
are provided in the Annual Report as “Annexure-3".

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT ’

As raquired under Clause (B):of Schedule V of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosura
Requirements} Regulations, 2015, A detailed Management Discussion and Analysis
Repott o the Financial Conditions and Regalt of operations of the Company is included
in this Annual Repart under the heading “Annexure-4”.

PARTICULARS OF?CJDZNTR’A‘GTMR_._A-I%RENGEMENFS' WITH RELATED PARTIES
During the year under review, the Company had not entered into any transactions as:
enumerated i section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules. made thereander with
the related party as defined under section 2(76) of the Act.




SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS COR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND
COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE _
There are o significant, material orders passed by the regulators/courtsftribunals which
would impact the going concern status-of the Company arid #ts future operations.

CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATION:

As. requited by Regulation 17(8) of SEBlListing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The.CEQ / CFO certificate for the: financial year 2020-

g’f hag been submitted to the Board and the copy thergof |s contained 1n the Annual
eport.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCGIAL CONTROLS

The Company believes that a strong internal control framewark is an important pillar of
Corporate Governance. The Company has in place adeyuate internal finangial control
system which ensure ‘orderly and efficient conduct of its business, safeguarding of s
assets and accuracy‘ and completeness of accountmg recerds timely pfeparatm of

Further, company's intefnal conirel system is cammensurata with- the size, scale and
complexity: of its ‘operations. The main thrust of internal audit is to test and review
controls, appraisal of fisks with best practices in the industry. Tha Management with
Audit Commiftee periodically reviews the internal Control System and procedure for the
efficient conduet of the business.

ANAGEMENT

The Company operates in-conditions where economic- environment and social fsk arg
inherent to its businesses. In managing fisk, it iz the Company's practice to take
advantage:of potential opportunities while ma nagi'mg potential .adverse effects.

The-varlous elements of risk which: the Birectors think, that may threaten the existence:

of the Company are:

a) Finarcial Rigk: Financial risk generally arises due toinstability-and josses in
the- financial market caused by movements in stock prices, currencies,
interest rates and mare.

Liguidity Risk; Jt is the risk that the Company will be unable fo meet its
financial commitment io a Bank/Finandial Institution in any location; any
currency at any point in time. The risk stemming from the fack of
marketability .of an investment that cannot be bought or sold ‘quickly enough’
to prevent or minimize a loss.

e} Credit Risk: The fisk of loss of principal or Iass of a financlal reward
stemming from @ borower's. failure to repay a loan or etherwts& meet a
centractual cbligation.

d) Time Risk: To compensate for non-receiptof expected inflow of funds,

b)

In line with Listing Regulations and as per'the requirement of Section: 134(3] {n) of the
‘Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules mads there under, as amended, Board has &
framework for Risk Managemerit o oversee: tﬁe mlt:gataen o &uch risks:




REMUNERATION POLICY | »
The Nomination and Remungration Policy of the company as mandated under Section
478.(3) (4) of the Companies-Act, 2013 s available on the website of the company

CORPQRATE SOCIAL RESPONSIEI LITY
The provisions of seation 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 wiih respect 1o Corporate
Soctal Responsibility are not applicable 1o the Compary:

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT __ _

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, yeur Directors make the

following statemeritand confi that:- - _ |

i) in the preparation of the mnnual accounts. for the year ondsd 31 March 2021, the

" -gpplicakle accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, Tany; '

if} the: Directors had sefected such aceounting policies and applied them congsistently and
made judgments and astimales that are reasonable and prudent so-as io give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as &t 31 Marcty 2021 ard of the
Loss. of the Company for year-ended on that date;

iii)the. Diractors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
sccounting records in accordance with the: provisions: of this Act for safeguarding the
assats of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other rregularities;

ivithe Diregtors had prepated the Annual Accounts on a ‘going concern basis”,

v) the: Directors had laid down intefnal financial controls and that such internal financial

- controls-a te adeqoate-and‘are operafing effectively; and

viythe Directors: had devised proper systems to énsure compliance withy the pravisions of

all applicable Jaws and that siich systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financia! Statement for the. financial year 2020421 js: prepared in
accordance with applicable provisions of the: Companies Act, 2013, Aceounting standard
and SEB {Listing Obligations and Disciosu re Requirements). Regulations, 2016

1GIL “HANISM WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The.Company has fermulated a Wigil Mechanisr {(Whistle Blower Policy) for its directers:
and employees of the Company for reporting genuine concems gbout unethical
practices and suspected. or actual fraud or violation of thé code of conduct of the
Company pursuant to the: provisions, of Section 177 of ‘the Companies &cf, 2013 read
with the rules. made thereunder. This vigll ‘mechanism shall provide a channel to the
employees. and Directors to report. 1o the mianagemertt, concerns about unethical
behavior, and also: provide for adequate: safoguards against victimization of persons
who use the machanism and dlso make: provision for direct access to the chairperson of
the Audit Committee i appropriate or exceptional. The. practice of the Vigil Mechanism
fWhistie' Blower Policy is oversesny Dy the Audit Committee of the Board and no
employee has been denied access to:thg-Committee.

The Company wilt take appropriate-action for its resolution. During the year, no whistle
blower event was reperted and mechanism is functioning well,




'Gampanys anrd 'has laid down a Code of Conduct. for all the Board Members. dand
Senior Management Personnel-of the Company. The Code of Conduct s availgble on ihe
Company’s website www.nilkanthengingering cein. Al Board Members and Benior

Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Condust for' Board
Members and Senior Management during the financial year 202021, The daglgration in
his yegard has been made by the Management Director which forms the part of this
report ag-an annexure.

ﬁs per Regulatden: KL 5{2-} 'of the' Ligting ‘Reguiations, the: compliance with the: Gmpcrate
Governanee provisions. shall not apply in respact of the following class of companies:

a. Lls’ced Entity having paid up-edquity share capital not exceeding Rs.10 crore and
Net Worth not exceeding Rs.25 crote, as on the last day of the previous
financial year,

b. Listed Entity which has listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange.

Since; our Company falls: in the: ambit of aforesaid exemption (a); hence compliance
with the. provisions of Corgorate: Governance shal) not apply to the: Company and it also.
does not form part of the Annual Report.

DISCLOUSRE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD BY DIRECTORS

‘The company complies with all applicable standards. issued by fhe institute of Company
Secretaries of India. The Direclors have devised proper systems to ensure- compliance
with the provisionis of ali applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems aié
adequate and uperating effectively.

The: z:empany complies with all applicable; standards Issued by the institute-of Compary
Secretaries of india. The Directors have devised proper systems fo ensure compliance
with the provisions of ail applicable Secretarial Standards: and thal such: systems: are
adequate-and. operating effectively.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adapted the Cods of conduct for prevention of insider Trading with
view to regulate trading in securities by Directors and. deslgnated smployaes of the
Company. The Code of conduct requite pre-disclosure for dealing in Company’s Shares
and prohibit the purchase or sale of Comipany's shares by the Directors: and the
designated amployeas while in possession of unpublished price sensifive information i
relation to the Company and during the period when trading window is-tlosed. The Board
is responsible: for implementation of the code. All Board of Directers and the designated
employees have sonfirmed the compliance of code.

The particuiars of loang, : guarantaes or :nvestments covered under the provisions. of
Section 486 of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, are given iy the Audited Finangial
Staterwants, wherever appiicable.




in view of the nature of activities which are being cartigd on by the. Cempany, the
particulars. as: preserbed ynder Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Companies’
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Consevaton of Energy and Technalogy &bsorption,
and research and development are noetappiicable to the-Company.

There were noforeign exchange garnings and outg dings during the yearu nder review:

Nr. Nitin Agrawal (DIN — 08186528) who is: refiring by rotation at this: Knnugl General
Meeting s to be re-appointed. His involvement. with the. affairs of the Company is
peneficial {o the Company &8s well a8 Stakeholders..

PERFORMANGE EVALUATION

The Neomination and Remuneration: Policy. of the: Company empowers the Nomination
-and Remuneration Gom Jittee to-formulate the pracess ‘of evaluating the performance of
individual Directors, Committees of the Beard and-the Board as whele.

The Nomination. and Remuneration Committee of the Company also evplugted the
parformance of all individual Directors on vafious paramelees such as levet of
participation -of Directors, oreparing themselyes well in advance to fake aclive
participation at the meeting(s), level of ¥nowledge and expertise e1c.

All the independent Directors of the Company aiso had a seperate mesting on 12"
February, 2021 {o review the: pesformapce and gvaiuation of Non<independent Directors
and Board as awhole.

The Board .after taking into consideration the -evaluafion as. done by Nomination and
Remuneration Gommittes and by independent Ditectors, carfied out an annual
evaluation of jts:own perfo rmance and that of its Committegs and Individual Director, The
overall outcome of such evaluation is that the Board, its committees and individual
Directors have performed effectively end satisfactorily

DECLARATION OF ib DEPENDENT DIRECTOR,
Al the Independent Director have corfirmed io the Board that they meet the criteria of
independence as specified under section 149(B) of the Companies Act, 2013 and they
qualify fo be an Independent Ditecior pursuant 1o the Rule 5 of the Companies
'Lﬁppﬂinimenf and Qualtification of Directors), Rulg 2014, The Independent Directers have.
aiso canfirned. that thay mest the requirements of “Independent Director” as mentioned
under Reguiation 16(1){E) of the Listing Reguiations.




BOARD MEETINGS o o

During the year under review the Company held Five (5} meetings of the Board of
Directors a5 per Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013 on 317 July 2020, 5" September:
2020, 15" Septerber 2020, 11" Novembier 2020 and 12" February 2021

The frequency of hoard. meefings and :quorum at such. meefings were in accordance:
with the Comparies Act, 2013 and the Securities. and Exchange Board of India {Listing
‘Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations”) and
compliarices of Secretarial Standards-1 (851} on Meesting of the: Board of Direclers
issugd by 1CS]. The intervening gap: between dny two meetings was ‘within the: peried
prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Regulatiens and $8-1,

BOARD COMMITTEE ~ AUDIT COMMITTEE _

The Audit Committee is constituted pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Members of the Audit Commiftee possess financial /
accounting expariise f exposure. Further, all the recommendations made by the Audit
Committes were: duly accepted by the Board of Directors. The Company Secretary is
acting as Secretary of this Committes. The Managing Ditector and CFO are the
permanent invitee lo Audit Committee to give clarification on -accounts amd other
related issues.

The Composition of Audit Commitiee as on 31.03.2021 are as under :

' Sr-; Name of the Director - Positionn | Category
| Ne. -

T | Smt, Rajshree Tapuriah | Chairman | Independent Director _

2 | Shri. Ramdas Bhatter ' KMember | [ndependent Dirsctor

{3 |Shii Nitin Agrawal | Merriber | Managing Director

Four meetings-of e Audit Committes were held during the financial year 2020-21 on
31 July 2020, 15" September, 2020, 11" November 2020 and 12" February 2021,
The accounts and financial positions were perused by the Audit Committee and.
‘thereafter placed before the Board for their consideration..

BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION

The Nomination ‘and Remuneration Committee- Is constituted pursuant to the
provisions of of Section 178 of the: Companies Act, 2013. Membars of the. Nomination
and Remuneration: Committee possess sound expertiss / knowledge 7 exposure. The
Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of this commitiee

The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee ason 31.03.2021 are
as under: '

S| Name of the Director “Postion | Category

1 |8mt Rajshree Tapuriah | Member .'.-:Inde_pandeht Director

2 | Shri. Ramdas Bhatter Member | Independent Direstor

3 | Shri. G M. Loyatka : Chairmart | Nen-Executive Diregtor




Three meetings. of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held during fhe
financial year 2020-21 on 5" Septernber, 2020 and 15* September, 2020

AUDITORS: :

Ws Kamavat & Co., Chatlered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: 104863W) were
appuinted as Statutory Auditers of the Company for the term of 5 years. at the 34"
Annual General Meeting of the company held on'26"™ Ssptember; 2017, from conclusion:
of the said meeting untit the condlusion of 38% Annual Gensral Mesting to be held in the
year 2022 -

As per-the provisions. of Section 138 of the Act, they have confirmed. fhat they are not
disqualified from continuing as Statutory Auditor of the Company.

AUDITORS REPORT _

The observation of the Auditors in their report read with relevant ndtes on the accounts,
as annexed are self-explanatory and do not call for any further explanation under
section 134(3))) of the Companies Act; 2013,

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR - _
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the: Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thersunder, the Company has appointed M/s Girsh Murarka & Co., Campany
 Secretaries. in Practice having membership No. 7036 to undertake Secretarfal Audit of
the Company: The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2020-21 as issued by
him in the prescribied Form MR-3:is annexed io this Report as Annexure: 5. The said
Secretarial Audit Report does not eontain any qualification, reservation or advarse
remark or disclaimer made by Secretarial Auditor.

INTERNAL AUDITOR _

Pursuant 16 the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
rules made thereunder the Board of Direclors had approved the appointment of Mis
Milind P. Shah, Chartered Accountants, as “Internal Auditor” of the company for -
conducting Internal Audit forthe financial year 2020-21. The Internal Audit Reports for
each quarter were receéived biy-the Company and the same-were reviewad by the A udit
Committee and Board of Directars. :

COSTAUDIT |
The provisions of Cost Audit-as prescribed-under section 148 of the-Companies Act,
2013 arg not applicahle to the Cempany :

» “Your Company has notissued: -
- Any shares with differential rights;
~ Anyswest equity shares

« There are ho significant or materlal orders passed by the: Regulators or Courts of
Tribunats which impact the going concern status and Company's .operation in
itture,




* There were no material changes.and commitrnents affecting the financial position of

iycur:ebmpany:between the end of the financial year ang the date of this tepori.
*  There was: ne revision in:the financial statemnants,

* Your Company: has: not received any complairits under the Sexual Haragsment of

Wemen at Workplace {Prevention «Prohibition and Redressal) Adt: 2013,

AFPRECIATION _

Your Directors express their deep sense of gratitude fo the barks,. financial instifutions,
stakeholders, business @ssociates, Central and State Governments fortheir co-operation
and unstinted support received from them during the year and look Torward to their
‘cantinued support in fufure, _

For and on bishalf of the Board of Directors of
Niikanth: Engineering Limited

T Agrawar
Place: Mumbal Managing Director
Date : 28.08.2021 (DIN: 08186528)



Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidinries!
associate companies]! joint veniures.
Part “A”": Subsidiaries

Name tf the subgidlary ' ' il
1. Date on which the subsdlary was | '
acquired |

2, Reporting period for the subsidiary
- concemed, - if different from the
halding company's- reporting pericd

2. Reporling currency and Ex-n‘h:ang_e“
rate as onthe tast date of the
relevant Financial year in the case of
foreign.  subsidiaries:

1 3. Share capital

| 4. Reserves & surpliis

5. Total assets

Total Liabilities

e

investments:

{ 8. Tummover

8. Profit before taxation
f10. vaisia_n;r-fe_r-'t-axazi&n'
| 11. Profit after taxation

12. Proposed Dividend

113. % of sharshclding

The following information shall‘bie furnished:-
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence:operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have beenliquidated orsold during the year.




Rs. in Lakhs.

RNare of AssaclatesiJoint Ventures

Jatayu Textiles &

Industries Limited

[ Dairis anﬁﬁE‘.Pti’vatﬁ:

Limited _

Sushres

: Trading
Limited _

-1.:1-
2

Latest audited Balance Shest Date

Date: on which the: associate or doint Venture was |
-associated or scguired '

Shares of Associatelloint Ventures. heid by the- -'

Sompany on the year.end

Nex:

Amountof investmentin Associates/daint Veriture

Exdtend of Holding %
Rescription of hiow there Is significant iffluence:

Reason why the assecialefjoint ‘venture is not |
consalidated: .

. Networth atiribytable tor Shiareholding as per fatest

audited Balance Sheet
Profit/ Loss for the.year

I. ‘Considered in Consolidation
I Not Considered:in Consoligation

‘Bince: the

a1.03.:2021

31102012

573900
183.71
- 2881%

Company

{ holde rore: than 20%
-aquity
| -significant intluence &
| -Aassumed,

capital;

NA

-5,008.27

{390.49)

21.03,2021

26:02.2040

3000
0.30

30:00%

 Since: the: Company
- bolds more: than 2%
‘sqaity
 Significant iinflusnce is
{-8ssumed.

Capital,
KA

563.05

{002y

31032021

31122019

528258
15442

42:43%

Since: the Comipany
holds more than 20%
equity capital.
- significent influence

881.05

The following information shail befurnighed:.

1 .
l:‘

Place: Mumbai
Date: ::29:08.2021

Nh_mn_:of-muaihm-&ﬁ]ﬁmiavan’tumw'high..aqq.-_ypét 10 sammtence-operations: Nil _
Names of associates: orjoint ventures which have hsan-s!it_midaﬁauirar:adlgl*ﬂ urfng the year: Nij

Forand on behalfof the.Board of Directors of
Nilkanth Engineering Limitsd

Managing Director

(DIN: D5188528)

G. M. Loyaika
Diregtor
(DIN: D0299415)

e,



Annexure 2

PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 (12} OF THE COMPANIESACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULE 3(1f OF THE COMPANIES {APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
HANAGERIALPERSEIN&E‘L) RULES, 2014 FOR THE FINAN{IIAL YEAR ENDED ON

*T MARCH, 2021

Requirement of Rule 5(1)

Detafls

. | The ratio of the remuneration |

of @ach Director o thg

- median employees of the

company. for the financial
year.

- Remuneration fs paid to only One Ditector who is

Managing Director

[ The percentage mr:rease in
| remuneration of each
| Director Chief Finansiaf

Officer, Company Secrefary
Chisf Executive Officer or

:Manager if any, inthe-
' Fmanr;la‘l Year

| CFQ, Company Secretary, -Chisf Executive Officer !

No-changes during the Year in.remuneration of

or Manager

! The pe;r:entage increase in-
| the:median remuneration of
| the employess in the
| Financial Year

NA

 The numiber of the permanent|
| employes on e ralt-of the-
company

| Average percentile increase
| glready made in the salaries

of employees other than the

- Managerial parsonaalin the
last financial year and its
‘comparison with the %

| increase in the managerial

Temuneration and justitication
thereof and peint.out if there

-are any exceplional
| eircumstances for increase in -
the managerial remuneration; j

employeas ig: NA

' Awerage salary increase of managerial employees is

+ The average increase in remuneration of all

Avarage salary i rncﬁeage of non- managenai

- NA

-employees are decided based on ihe company's
poficy, individual's performance, inflation and |
prevailing industry trend. |

| Affirmstion that the "
| remuneration is as per the

remunetation policy of the

_Company.

Yes




Annexure 3

Name

 Shruti Didwania

Designation

| ﬁom'p'any Secretary:and Compliance Officer

Remuneration Paid

Nature of Employment
:cuntr;.act‘ual;:ar'_-tgthemisg}

Contractual

Qiuialification:

Professional

Experience

5 years

L3

_ Hyears

folning the company |

Last  Employment betors]

Akarshak Synihetics Limited

Relation fo any director (if

NG

17.01.2020.

Place: Mumbaj
Date -: 28.08.2021

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nilkanth JEnjg_.inaering Limited

Nitin Agrawal G M._;Lm!alka
Managing ‘Director Director
(DIN: 08186528 (DIN; 00298418)




Annexure 4

ZMAN%GI_EME’HTDFS‘CMSSIQH AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry Structure and Development o

The Financlal year 2020-21 had been quite & challenging year for the Indian sconomy
and. particularly for the: financial services sectar. The. continued -uncertainties, volatiie
credit envirenment and slow egconomic growth created headwinds. The ongolng COVID-
19 pandemic and subseguent lockdowns have impacted the businesses and aggravated
the-prevailing sectorial chalienges.

Qver the course of .lasi'agsar. vaceination drive raised hopes, whereas renewed waves
and new virus variant continue to pose corcern for the outiook. The continued spread of
the COVID-18 pandemic and subseguent synchronized lockdown auross major gities iy
India resulted in shrinking -of the capital market lending business

Opportunities and Throats -
NBFCs: have: played an important role by providing funding to: the unbanked sector hy
catering to the diverse financial needs of the oustomers. Further, sueh companies play &
critical role in pariicipating in the development :of an economy by providing a fillip. to
transpoitation, employment generation, wealth creation, bank crad in rural segments
and to support financialy-weaker seciions of the sodiety.

The second wave of COVID<15 and its potential impact has now raised quisstions on the.
economic growth and credit off ‘take in: Indfa. imposition of sudden lock downs f delay in
vacelnation program, could result irt a deeper economic recession in near future posing
threats for our lending business.

Segment-wise-Performance
Your Company operates only single segment which. is making long ter investment ang
letting out of the:immovable property).

Future Ouflock _ _
Timely execution of Covid-18 vaceination: drive, reasonable rebound Tn-economic. were
indicators to. pre-covid levels, unprecedented measures taken by nations across world to
mestare coronavirus-affected economy, improved corporate eamings have lead the
markets scale: new highs. The progression curve is expected to resume with public policy
support and private partieipation. Reform measures have been made by RBI to ease ouf
liguidity in the markets and to encourage credit inflows vis NBFGC,. HFC, MFis, The:
Company has-taken into corisigeration tha changas in the capital market and brokerage
segment and is. well prepared to overcome challenges and perform su stainably '

Risk and concems

Tough competition, slow ecanomic growth, rapid changing statues and regulatory
framework, stc. are the major risk areas in the Company's business. By using our
axperence; we hope-to perform better in the year to come in spite-of these rigks.




n Contro| Sygtem & their adequacy
The Company had adequate internal control system commensurate with its size and

nature of business: Your company’s intetnal conftrol procedures ate adequate to-ensure

compliance with various policies, practices and statutes.

Financial & Operational Performance

The Company has ‘adapted IND AS for 1eparting financial results for the year under
review. During the year-under review, tha Company's netted off loss of Rs. 78, 4, 349/-
before fax (Previaus Year Net Loss of Rs, 91 58,202/<) and net Comprehensive Inceme
for the year affer tax was at Rs. 4,38,04 918/- (Previous yearthe tolal Comprehensive
Loss of Rs. 1,15,41,45,887/-) '

Human Regources and industrial Relatlons '

The Company recognizes the importance «of Human Resource: as a key asset
instrurnental. it its growth. The Gompany has well deveioped management information
System giving dally, monthly: and Periedical infarmation to: the different- levels. of
management. Such reports are being analyzed and effective: sleps are taken to controf
he efficiency, utifization, productivity and quality in the Companry.

Forand-on behalf of th e Board of Directors of
Nilkanth Engfneering Limited

Niﬁt‘!nz,ﬂgrawai' 6. M. Loyalka
Place: Mumbai ‘Managing Director Director
Date :29.06.2021 - (DIN: 08186528 (DIN: 00298418)




COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
[ Regulation 17(8) of SEBt (Listing Obligation.and Disclosure Requirements)
o Regulations, 2015

The Board of Directars: _
NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

We' have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for tha yearand that
{0 the-best of our knowledge and beligf cerfify that:

1. We have reviewed. the financial statement and Gash Flow Statement both on.
standalone and consolidaled basis far the year ended on 31.03.2021 and to the
best of our knowledge and balief:

a, These statements do: not contain -any malsrally unfrue slalement or
omit 'any material facts or contain any statement that might be
misleading.

b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the:
Company’s: affairs. and are in compliance with existing accounting
standard, applicable faws and regulations. :

2. ‘We are to be best of their Rnavﬂedggé.ané belief, nia transaction entered into by the
Company during year ended 31% March, 20271 which are fraudulant, illegal of
violating of the Company's sode of conduct.

financial reporting and that we: have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control
sysiems of the Company perairing to: the financial teporting and have disclosed
to the Auditors. and Audit Committee, déficiencies in the: design or operation of
such intemal controls, if any -of which we. are aware and the steps have been
faken o proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies. '

4. ‘We have indicated fo the Atditors and Audit Committee thatthere is no:

a) significant changes in the infemnal controls over financial reporting

b} significant change in accounting policies and the same have Been
disclosed in-the nofes lothe financlal statements and

c} Instances of significant fraud of which we have become and the
invalvement therein, if any, of the management or employee having a
significant role- in the Company's internal control system over financial
repariing. '

3, We: accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internat control for

For and on behaif of the Board.of Directors of
Nilkanth Engineering Limited

PR S N
Nt Agrawal G.M.Loyalka
Place: Mumbai Managing Director Director

Date :29.08.2021 (OIN: 06486528)_ (Dint: aogmod16)




The Board of Directors ang Senior Managemient Personnel have affirmed their
compliance of Gode-of Conduct for Mambers of the Board and Senlor-Management
for the year 2020:21 in ferms of SEBI (Listing Obligations ‘and Disclosute Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 oo

Place: Mumbai
Date: : 28.05.2021




Anniexure 5

GIRISH MURARKA & CO.
Compaony Secretaries |
Ground Hoor, Wing “A", Flat No. 001, Bhoroteeyo Kalo Manda! C72, Co-op. Hsg. Soa. Lidl
Qm Nager, Andher {East), Mumbai 400 099
Phone {0 : 2839 2294
Erait ; g_iris;‘-hmurgtkﬂ@gmuit..cam

‘Form No. MR-3
' SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[ Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act,.2013 and rule 8 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnal}, Rules 2044]

To,

The KMembers

NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
407, Kulbatevi Road,

3™ Floor, Daulat Bhavan

Mumbai 400 002

o

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Compliance of appiicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to corporate practices by NILKANTH ENGINEERING
LIMITED {herein after called “thie Company’} for the sudit period tovering the financlal
yoar ended on 31% March, 2021. The Secretarial Audit was conducted In a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating -the corperate conducts / statulory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers; minyte books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information:
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives. during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
thes audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, generally somplied
with the. statutory provisions listed hereurider and also that the Company has proper
Board processes and compliarice mechanism in place ‘o the extent, in the manner and
subject ta reporting made hereinafter .

1. | have examined the bocks, papers, minute books, forms .and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company ag given in the Annexure |, for the
financial year-ended on March 31, 2021, accerding to the provisions (fo the extent
applivable} of : _

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} and fhe rules made thereunder;

i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {S8CRA) and the rules
magde fhereunder; ' . .

iy  The Depositories Act, 1896 and the Regulstions and Bye-aws framed
thereunder; o _

iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1989 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder applicable o the extert of receipt of funds on non-
repatriation basis: from foreign Investor; (Not Applicable to the Company
gduring the Audit Period) . .




v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and. Exchange Board of india.Act, 1992 {SEB/ Act’)

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

b) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of [nsider
Trading) Regulations, 1992

¢} The Securiliss and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations; 2008 {Not Applicable to the:
Company during the Audit Period)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase scherne) Guidelines, 1999 and
the Securities. and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee
Benefits] Regulations, 2014 (Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period) o

€} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {:Issue and Listing of Debt
« Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the Gompa ny dieritig
the Audit Peried).and

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1893 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client. {Not Applicable to the Company daring the
Audit Period}

g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009; {not applicable to the Company during
audit period) and ' \

hy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securitissy
Regulations, 1968, {not applicabls to the Company during audit
period).

i} The examination of compliance of the provisions of other special
applicable laws was fimited to the verification of procedurs. on test
basis.

'have also examined compliance with the applicable ¢lauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,

it. The. Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Bombay Stock
During the pericd under review tha Corpany has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements ste. mentioned
above.




1 further-report that:

i. The Board of Directors of the: Company-is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive: Directors, Nom-Executive Directors and Independerit Directors.
There-are no changes in the compasition of the Board of Directors during the
period under review.

ii. Adequate notice iy giverr 1 all directors to- schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and
a system exists for sesking and obtaining fuither information and clarifications
‘on the agenda iterns before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting. .

iil, Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, i any,

are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company t6 monitor and ensure

compiliance with applicable faws, rules, Tegulations and guidelines.

tfurther report that during the awdit period, there are tig speeific svents. / actions

having. a major bearing on the Company's: affairs in pursuance of the Jaws, rules,

regutations; guidelines, standard atc: raferred to above.

Girish Murarka & Cofx{ 4o
CP No, 4578

Place: Mumbal
Date:30.07.2021
UDIN : AGG736CA00711707



GIRISH MURARKA & CO.
Company Secretaries
Ground Fioor, Wing A", Flat Ne. 001, Bharateeya Kaler Mandal & /2, Corop. Hsg. Soc. Lid.

Om Nogar, Andher {East, Mumbai 400099 N
Phone (O] 1 28392294
Emicil © girishmurarka@gmail.com

To.

The Mambers

NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
407, Kalbadeyi Road,

‘3" Floor, Daulat Bhavan

‘Mumibai 400:002

Our report of everudate is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record s the responsibility of the management of the
company. CQur responsibility Is: to express an opinion on’ these secretarial
records based on cur-audit. o

2.We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to.
©oblain reasonable assurancs abouf the comectness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done ‘on test basis to ensure that
correct facts: are reflecied in secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and-practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for cur opinian.

3.We have: not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records

and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. \Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compitance-of laws, rules and regulations.and happening of events:stc.

5. The complianice of the provisions of Comporste and other a ppiicable Jaws, rules,
regiations, standards s the responsibilty of management. Cur examination
was limited to the verification of pracadures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assyrance as to the fiiture viablfity of
the company nor of the: efficacy or effectiveriess with: which the management
has conducted the affairs of the company. '\, » T

ACS No, 7036
CP:No.. 457§

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30.07.2021
UDIN ; ADD736C000711707



ANNEXURE |
List of documents verified:

1. Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company .
2. Annual Repoit for the finanicial year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2020
3. Minutes of meeting of Board of Directors, Audit Commitiee, Nomination &
Remuneration Co_mrniﬁee-.alang with aftendance register held during the financial’
year under report _
4. Minutes of General Body Meeting held during the financial year under repart
5. Statutory Registers o _
6. Agenda papers provided to all the Directors / Members for the Board Meeting and
Committee Meeting
7. Declaration received from Directors ‘of the Company pursuant to the provisions of
section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013 _
E-forims filed by the Company, from time to time, under the.applicable. provisions.of the
Companies Act, 1956/ 2013 and attachments thereof during the financial year under
repon, '

Tk




KARNAVAT & CQO. 2A KITAB MAHAL,

192 DR. D. NAOROCJ[ ROAD,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS MUMBALI - 400.001.

TEL.:+91 22 4066 6666 (10 LINES)
FAX :+91 22 4066 6660

E-mail : kamavattax@gmail.com

UDIN : 2113768B6AAAAGPG098
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of NILKANTH ENGINEERING
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the Standalone
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
Standaione Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (collectively referred to as ‘Standalone Financial
Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and its loss, totat
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note No.35 to the Standalone Financial Statement for the year
ended March 31, 2021, which describes the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus
{COVID-19) on the business operations of the Company. In view of the highly uncertain
ecanomic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is
highly dependent upon drcumstances as they evolve.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. ik

|/ i A
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Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our professionat judgment were of most
significance it our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March
31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated In our report;

Continuation Sheet

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Our Response

1 Defined benefit obligation We have examined the key controls over the
The valuation of the retirement | process involving member data, formulation
benefit schemes in the Company is | of assumptions and the financial reporting
determined with reference to | process in arriving at the provision for
various actuarial assumptions | retirement benefits. We tested the controls
including  discount rate, future | for determining the actuarial assumptions
salary increases, rate of inflation, | and the approval of those assumptions by
mortality rates and attrition rates. | senior management., We found these key
Due to the size of these schemes, | controls were designed, implemented and
small ¢hanges in these | operated  effectively, and  therefore
assumptions can have a material | determined that we could place reliance on
impact on the estimated defined | these key controls for the purposes of our
benefit obligation. audit.

We tested the employee data used in
calculating the obligation and where
material, we also considered the treatment
of curtailments, settlements, past service
costs, remeasurements, benefits paid, and
any other amendments made to obligations
during the vyear. From the evidence
obtained, we found the data and
assumptions used by management in the
actuarial valuations for retirement benefit
obligations to be appropriate.

2 Modified Audit Procedures | Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
carried out in light of COVID- | that caused nationwide lockdown and other
19 outbreak: travel restrictions imposed by the Central

and State Governments/local administration
Due to COVID-1% pandemic, | during the period of our audit, we could not
Nation-wide lockdown and travel |travel to the Company's Office and carry
restrictions imposed by Central/ | out the audit processes physically.
State Government/ Local
Authorities during the period of | Wherever physical access was not possible,
our audit to facilitate carrying out | necessary records/ reports/ documents/
audit remotely wherever physical | certificates were made 3available to us
access was not possible, audit | through digital medium and emails. To this
could not be conducted by visiting | extent, the audit process was carried out on
the premises of the Company. the basis of such documents, reports and
records made available to us which were
relied upon as audit evidence for conducting
the audit and reporting for the current
period.

(Cont..3)
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As we could not gather audit | Accordingly, we modified our audit
evidence In person/physically/ | procedures as follows:
through discussions and personal
interactions with the officials at | a. Conducted verification of necessary
the Company’s Office, we have records/ documents through emails
identified such modified audit wherever physical access was not
procedures as a Key Audit Matter, possible,
Accordingly, our audit procedures | b. Carried out verification of scanned copies

were meodified to carry out the
audit remotely.

of the documents, deeds, certificates and
the related records made available to us

through emails.

¢. Making enquiries and gathering necessary
audit evidence through Video
Conferencing, dialogues and discussions
over phone calls/conference calls, emails
and similar communication channeis,

d. Resolution of our gaudit observations
telephonically/through email instead of a
face-to~face interaction with the
designated officials.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinicn on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cornection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respaonsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standaione Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including Other
Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting

AN X
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policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Thaose Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Flnancial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materfal if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
centrol.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also sesponsibie for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company‘s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company o
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasanably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstaterments in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them ali relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or reguiation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1, As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of
the Act and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company
as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

o<\ (Cont..6)
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company, so far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) In our opinion the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on Maich
31, 2021, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f} With respect to the other rmatters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in Annexure-B,

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report that:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position other than those mentioned in notes to accounts.

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

lifyThere were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investors Education and Protaction Fund by the Company.

For and on behalf of
KARNAVAT & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No., 104863W

%}
|

\ ' (Viral
Place : Mumbai \R. N Parther
Dated : June 29, 2021 Membership No. 137686
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
ANNEXURE-A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ our report to the members of NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED, (Cthe
Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2021. We report that:-

i In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
including guantitative detalls and situation of fixed assats.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of fixed
assets which is, in our apinion, reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme,
certain fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

() As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, the
title deeds of the immovahle properties as disclosed in Property, Plant &
Equipments (Note No. 3 to the Standzlone Financial Statements) are held in
the name of the Company.

il In respect of its inventories:

The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act and hence provisions of Clause 3(iii) of the
aforesaid Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security to
the parties covered under Section 185. Further, the Company has complied with
provisions of Section 186 in respect of grant of loans and making investments as
applicable.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections
73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent
notified.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
require maintaining cost records as prescribed by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.




KARNAVAT & CO. Continuation Sheet

CHARTERED ACCOUMNTANTS

*2:

vii, {a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is generally
regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, GST, duty
of customs or cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. No undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, GST, duty of customs or cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, as at 31-03-2021, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b} According to the records of the Company and information and explanations
given to us no dues of income tax, GST, duty of customs or cess that have
not been deposited on account of any disputes.

viii. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and bank,

ix. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer, further public
offer (including debt instrumerits) and term loans and hence provisions of Clause
3(ix) of the aforesaid Order are not applicable to the Company.

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

xi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration is paid by the Company to its directors during the

year and hence provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the aforesaid Order are not applicable
to the Company.

xit. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable
to the Company and hence provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the aforesaid Order are
not applicable to the Company.

xiii, The Company has entered into the transaction with the related parties in
compliance with the provisions of the Section 177 and 188 of the Act. The details
of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS)18, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and
hence provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the aforesaid Order are not appticable to the
Company.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or

the persons connected with him and hence provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the
aforesaid Order are not applicable to the Company,

@r/ 2 {Cont...3)
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xvi. Pursuant to the RBI

Place
Dated

letter having

Continuation Sheet

1287/14/12-14-023/2018-19bdated

17.03.2020, the Company, vide its reply letter dated 12.08.2020, has surrendered
its Original Certificate of Registration issued by the RBI stating that the principal
business of the Company is no longer that of a NBFC, Hence, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company

! Mumbai
! June 29, 2021

For and on behalf of
KARNAVAT & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 104863W

(Viral JGshi)
Partner
Membership No, 137686
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
ANNEXURE-B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the ‘Report on Other Legal and
Requlatory Requirements’ our report to the members of NILKANTH ENGINEERING
LIMITED, (‘the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-Section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

We have audited internal financial controls over financial reporting of NILKANTH
ENGINEERING LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year then ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internai
financial controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities includes
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of the assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Company’s internatl financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the
Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicabie to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and Guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in atl material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an wunderstanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

(Cont...2)
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purpose in accerdance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statemenis in accordance with the
generalty accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are heing made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the Company: and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could hava
a material effact on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internai financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial control over financiai reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become nadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial
control system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financiat
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financiat
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.
For and on behalf of
KARNAVAT B CO.
Chartered Accountants

1) Firm Regn No. 104863W
7z N\
N\ \K_/'/ fw -~ = = .
N4 (Viral Joshi)
Pltace : Mumbai Partner

Dated : June 29, 2021 Membership No, 137686



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

. As at As at
Parﬁculars Noﬁs 31 Mal"ch, 2021 31 March, 2020
®) ®
ASSFETS
1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 7.10,15,114 7.80,33,248
(b) Financial Assats
i} Investments 4 6,25,52 622 5,98,43,372
ii) Other Financial Assets 5 8,30,808 8,08,251
Total Non-Current Assets 13,42,98,544 13,87.84,871
2. Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 30,53,414 18.51,971
{b) Other Current Assets 7 77,688 54.528
(¢} Current Tax Assets {Net) 8 2265476 43,13,397
Total Current Assets 53,956,676 62,19,896
Total Assets 13,9795 120 14,50,64,767
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9 1.24,50,000 1,24,50,000
(b) Other squity 10 (2,32,88,009) {1,81,29,803)
(1,08,38,009) (56,79,802)
2. Liabilities
Noen-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 11 421,933 3,26,875
3. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i} Other Financial Liabilities 12 15,00,00,000 1§,00,00,000
(b Cther Current Liabiliies 13 2,09,830 3,56,6837
{c) Provisions 14 1,366 1,058
15,06,33,129 15,06,84,570
Total Equity and Liabilities 13,97,95,120 14,50,04,767
Summary of slgnificant accounting policles 1&2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KARNAVAT & CO,
Chartered Accountants

£
Firm Regn. No. 1043‘ W: o ’/y / b
W - %x ~ -/}f

(Viral Joshi) (G.M. Loyalka) itin Agarwal)
Partner Rirectar Managing Director
Membership No: 137686 DIN: 00299416 DIN: 08186528
Place : Mumbai \\}}’ W
Date: June 29, 2021 &
UDIN: 21137686844GP60%8 7 e

f/@l‘““ ¢ A\ {Shruti Didwania) {Anil Londhe)

Q" o Company Secretary Chief Financilal Officer

X\ MumBAr ) )

g
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CIN: L27300MH1983PL 020360

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Particulars
l. income
Other Income

Total Income

Il. Expensges
Employge Benefit Expanses
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Other Expensas
Total Expenses
. Profiti{loss) BeforeTax(ll-1V)
V. Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Excess/{Short) Provision of Earlier Years
V. Net Profit After Tax

Vi. Other Comprehensive Income {ocn

Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified

to profit and loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial Gain/{Loss)
Net Gain/{Loss) on FYTOCI Invastments
Total Other Comprehensive Income

Vil. Total Comprehensive Income for the year

VIl. Basic and Diluted Earn ings per share (Face
value ¥ 10 pach)

Summary of significant accounting policles
The accompanying noles are an integral part of the
financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
KARNAVAT & CO,
Chartered Accountants

Finm Regn. No. 104863&

{Viral Joshl)

Pariner

Membership No: 137685

D

Place : Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2021
UDIN : 21137686 AAAAGP5098

Notss 2020-21 (¥) 2019-20 (%)
15 15,94,640 17,641,415
15,94,640 17,61,415
16 13,62,659 10,862,752
17 - 1,40,274
18 70,60,134 87,298,657
19 9,86,196 9,656,934
94,083,989 1,09,19,817
(78,14,349) (91,58,202)
- (26,818)
(78,14,349) (21,85,020)
46,893 (2,85,431)
26,09,250 (25,06,350)
26.56,143 (27,01,781)
{51,58,206) {1,19,76,801)
2 (6.28) (7.38)

182

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(— ‘Xrﬁ oo,
(G.M. Loyal&
Dirgctor
DIN: 00299416

v

(Shruti Didwania)
Company Secratary

{Nitin Agarwal)
Managing Director
DIN: 08188528

Agrx

Oa\ti//‘
{(Anil Londhe) -

Chief Financial Offiger



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN : L27300MH1983PLC0293560
Standalone Cash Flow Staternent for the year ended 31st March, 2021

. Year Ended
Particulars 2020-21 (¥) 2018.20 (¥)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before taxation and extraordinary items (78,14, 349) (81,58,202)
Adivstments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 70,60,124 8729657
Provision for Expenses 210,138 6,684,570
Prepaid Expenses 77,688 54,528
{Profity.oss on Sale of Investments (14,940} (73.036)
Intgrest Expensa - 1,40,274
Dividend Income - (17.61,415)
Operating Profit befora working capital changas {4,81,331) {13,83,624)
increase/(Decrsase) in Sundry Payables & Other Liakilities (2,14,688) (4,20,820)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables 18,116,520 33,75,033
{Increase)/Decrease in tventories - -
Cash generated from operations 11,20,503 15,70,589
Less: Direct Taxes paid (1,08,000) 1.33,200
Net Cash Flow from operating activities before exiraordinary ltems 12,286,503 14,37,389
AdJustments for Prior Period items - -
Net Cash Flow from operating activities (A) 12,238,503 14,37,389
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Sala of investments (net} 14,840 4,76,56%
Furchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {42,000} (94.400)
Dividend Income - 17,61,415
Net Cash fromKused) in Investing activities (8) {27,080) 21,43,584

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Loan Taken / (Repaid) - (32.00,000)

Inlerest Paid - {1,40,274)
Nst Cash from/(used) in financing activities {(C) - (33,40,274)
Neat Inecrease/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 12,01,443 2,40,699
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at beginning of period 18,51,971 16,111,272
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at end of period 30,53,414 15,581,971

1, Cash and cash equivalents includsd in the Statement of cash flows comprise the follawing :

2020-21 (¥) 2019-20 (¥)
Cash on hand 1,050 3,304
Batance in current aecount 30,582,364 18,468,667
Cash and cash equivalents as restated 30,53.414 18,51,971

2. Direct Tax paid are treated as arising from opsrating activity and not bifurcated in investment and fina ncing activitios.

3. Figuras of the previous year hava been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necassary to correspond with the figures of the
current year.

4. Figures in brackets represent outflows.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KARNAVAT & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Fim Regn. No. 104863W el

(wramﬂ

(G.M, Loyalka) {Nitin Agarwal)
Pariner Director Managing Director
Membership No: 137686 DIN: 00209418 DIN: 08186528
Place : Mumbai 5’ A
Date: June 29, 2021 El“// Y~ 7
UDIN : 21137686AAAAGPE098 {Shruti Didwania) (Anil Londhe)

Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying standalone financial statements.

1. Background

Nilkanth Engineering Limited (the Company’) is domiciled in India and is incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity Number
L27300MH1983PLC029360. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange in India.

The Company is engaged in the activity of financia! planning, renting and related
activities.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
i) Overall consideration

The principal business of the Company has ceased to be that of a NBFC in terms of
Press Release No. 1998-99/1269 dated 08.04.1999 issued by the RBI. Hence, as
desired by RBI, the Company has surrendered its Qriginal Certificate of Registration
issued by the RBI and that the principal business of the Company is no longer that of a
NBFC. Accordingly, these standalone financial statements are presented as per the
format applicable to Non-NBFC Companies.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared using the significant
accounting policies and measurement basis summarised below,

if) Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013 {"the Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended).

iii) Basis of preparation

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a2 newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or are vision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupees (INR) and
all values are rounded to the nearest rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

iv) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
liahilities at the date of the standalone financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting ‘estimates could change from
period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the standalone
financiai statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their
effects are disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements.

v) Applicability of new and revised Ind AS:

a) New amended standards and interpretation

i Ind AS 1 Presentation of Standalone Financial Statements - Substitution of the
definition of term 'Material'.

ii. Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - In
order to maintain consistency with Ind AS 1, the respective changes have been
made to Ind AS 8 also.

ii.  Ind AS 10 Events after the Reporting Period - Clarifieation on the disclosures
requirements to be made in case of a material non- adjusting event.

iv.  Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - In order to maintain consistency with the
amendments made in other Ind AS, respective changes have been made to Ind AS
34,

v.  Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Ciarification on
the accounting treatment for restructuring plans.

vi. Ind AS 103 Business Combination - Detailed guidance on term 'Business' and

'‘Business Combination' along with providing an Optional test to identify
concentration of Fair Value.

vii.  Ind AS 107 Financia! Instruments: Disclosures - Clarification on certain disclosures
to be made in respect of uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmark reforms.
vii. ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - Clarification on temporary exceptions from

applying specific hedge accounting requirements along with providing guidance on
transition for hedge accounting.

. Ind AS 116 Leases - Clarification on whether rent concessions as a direct

consequence of COVID- 19 pandemic can be accounted as lease modification or
not.

None of the amendments has any material impact on the standalone financial
statements for the current year.

b) New standards notified and yet to be adopted by the Company - None

vi}  Current/ non-current classification

Assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are classified into current/ non-current. An
asset is classified as current when it is:
* Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
*» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least tweive months after the reperting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

* & & @

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable due to the varying

nature of each project, the normal operating cycle has been assumed to be twelve
months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
respectively,

vii) Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to
the Company and that revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payments is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding duties and taxes collected on behalf of the Government.

The Company follows the prudential norms for income recognition and provides for
/writes off Non-Performing Assets as per the prudential norms prescribed by the
Reserve Bank of India or earlier as ascertained by the management.

a. Dividend Income

Income is recognized as and when the Company’s rights to receive the payment is
established, i is probabie that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. :

In case of interim dividend, the right to receive the payment is established, when the
dividend gets approved by the Board of Directors,

In case of final dividend, the nght to receive the payment is established, when the
dividend gets approved by the shareholder’s in the annual general meeting.

b. Interestincome

For all the debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded
using effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset of
to amortised cost of financial iiability. When calculating EIR, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider expected credit losses.



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

¢. Other Operational Revenue

Cther operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the
business and is recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per
the terms of the contract.

viil)  Property, plant and equipment

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item ean be measured reliably. PPE is
stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated
depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. The total cost of assets comprises its
purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Changes in the
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. Costs

also include borrowing costs for qualifying assets capitalised in accordance with the
Company's accounting policy.

Subsequent expenditure refated to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value
only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previcusly
assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Depreciation is recognised using Written Down Value method so as to write off the cost
of the assets (other than freehald land)) less their residual values over their useful lives
specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or in case of assets where the
useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined.
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset,

Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the
period of use. Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in

such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its
remaining useful life.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted, if appropriate.

ix) Leased assets

A right-of-use asset representing the right to use the underlying asset and a lease
liakility representing the obligation to make iease payments is recognized for all leases
over 1 year on initial recognition basis. Discounted committed & expected future cash
flows recognised as right-of-use asset and lease liability and depreciation on the asset
portion on straight-line basis & interest on liability portion (net of lease payments) on
EIR basis is recognized over the expected lease term. No right-of-use asset is created
for short term leases (i.e. lease term less than 1 year) and leases of low value items
(i.e. lease of asset with original cost of less than Rs. 1 fakh).



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

X) impairment testing of assets

The Company reviews the carrying values of assets for any possible impairment at
each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit
and Joss when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the assets net of seiling price or value in use. In
assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value based on appropriate discount rate. If at the balance sheet date there is
any indication that a previously assessed impaired loss no longer exists then such loss
is reversed and the asset is restated to that extent,

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for Impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit ievel,

Cash-generating units (determined by the Company's management as equivalent to its
operating segments) are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

xi)  Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a. Classification of Financial Instruments

At initial measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following

measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost;

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income;

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account.

The ciassification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets' cash
flows and the Company's business model for managing financial assets which are
explained below:

Business Model Assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it
manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Company’s
business mode! is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on cbservable factors,

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without
taking ‘worst case’ or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial
recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s original
expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining
financial assets held in that business modei, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest {SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual
terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset.

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash
flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement ie. interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a
profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the
contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a

basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial Labilities at amortised costs unless it has
designated liabilities at fair value through the statement of Profit and Loss account or
is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or less such as derivative
liabilities,

b. Financial Assets
I Initial recognition and measurement
Alt financiat assets are recognised initially at fair value. In the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset are also considered.
li. Investments in associates
The Company measures investments in Equity instruments of associates at cost.

ili. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three
categories:

(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost,

(b) Debt instruments and investment in Preference Shares at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL).

(c) Eg%i_tly instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
( QClI).

(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
callesting contractual cash flows, and
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Notas to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

i) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest (8PP} on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the profit or loss.

(b) Debt instruments and investment in Preference Shares at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A debt instrument shall be measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other

comprehensive income, which generally occurs when the SPPI criterion is not
met by the debt instrument.

{c) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)

For all equity instruments other than the ones classified as at FVTPL, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all
fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the
OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCJ to P&L, even on sale of
investment, However, the Company transfers the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

iv. Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. remaved from the balance
sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

v. Impairment

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL})
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the Trade receivables
or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 115. ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shorifalls),
discounted at the original EIR.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss

allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses.

No Expected credit losses are recognised on equity investments.

c. Financial Liabilities
i» Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recogniticn, as financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee, contract
payables, or derivative instruments.

. Subsequent measurement
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains / losses attributable 1o changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCl. These gains / losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

(b)  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transactions costs)
and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or ioss over the period
of the borrowings using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the ioan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

— %
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

iii. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liabifity are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new

liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

d. Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

xij)  Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of
three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement
which are described as follows:

(a} Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

(b) Level 2 inputs are inputs that are ohservable, sither directly or indirectly, other than
quoted prices included within level 1 for the asset or liability.

(c) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant
modifications to observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about
pricing by market participants.

Xiti) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results
are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the
management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker
evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of
various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.
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Xiv) Income taxes

Tax expense for the year, comprising cumrent tax and deferred tax, are included in the
determination of the net profit or loss for the year. Provision for current income tax is
made on the basis of the assessable income under the Income tax Act, 1961,

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss com prises the sum of deferred tax and current
tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or di rectly in equity,

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax hases

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the standalone financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying
tax loss or deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable
income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating resuits,
adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use
of any unused tax loss or credit.

xv}  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with
other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

xvi) Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Share capital represents the nominal (par) valug of shares that have been issued,
Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any

transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share

premium, net of any related income tax benefits. Other components of equity include
the following:

* Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability - comprises the actuaria) losses

from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and the return on plan
assets.

s Reserves for financial instruments measured at FVOCI.
» Retained earnings inciudes ali current and prior period retained profits.

xvii) Post-employment benefits and long/short-term em ployee benefits
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance
sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is
reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost, both vested
and unvested, is recognised as an expense at the earlier of:

(@)when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and

(bywhen the entity recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme
assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
available refunds and deductions in future contributions to the scheme.

The Company provides benefits such as gratuity to its employees which are treated as
defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

The Company provides benefits such as superannuation, provident fund to its
employees which are treated as defined contribution plans.

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and
the expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee
renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

xviii} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a realisable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Xix} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred. Costs in
connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the
acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, over
the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilized for qualifying assets,
pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to

construction/development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalization of such
asset is added to the cost of the assets.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

xx)  Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes in respect of
possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence is confirmed by the

acourrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the contro! of the Company.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the standalone financiat statements by way of notes
to accounts, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

xxi) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the Year
atfributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the Year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss for the Year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the Year is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

xxii} Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

When preparing the standalone financial statements, management makes a number of
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting

policies of the Company that have the most significant effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these

estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change the utility of certain
software and IT equipment.

Lease term of right-of-use assets
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Management reviews its estimate of the lease term of right-of-use assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the leased property. Uncertainties in this
estimate relate to business obsolescence/discontinuance that may change the lease
term for certain right-of-use assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or
obsetvable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in
use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not
yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of eritical underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation
of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the
DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

xxiii) Recent pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification,
amended Schedule IIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division |,
It and Ill of Schedule HI and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating
to Division Il which relate to companies whose standalone financial statements are
required to comply with Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed undef the head 4inancial
liabilities', duly distinguished as current or non-current.

» Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as
changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances
at the beginning of the current reporting period.

» Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

* Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables,
capital work-in-progress and intangible asset under development.

* | a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was
borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of
where it has been used.

» Spegcific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance
with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of
companies, title deeds of immovable prggifgme held in name of company,

T /Q'/,F“"“-ﬁp\
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP)
and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

» Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR),
undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head
‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone financial
statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give
effect to them as required by law.
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements {Continued)
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 4 : INVESTMENTS

Particulars

| ents at Fair throu 1 (FYTOCI

I} Quoted Equity Shares not held for trade
Jay Shree Tea & Industries Limited
(31st Mareh, 2020 : 73,500}

Mansoon Trading Company Limited
(31st March, 2020 ; 1,22,200)

Meenakshi Steel Industries Limited
(31t March, 2020 : 90,000)

H} Unquoted Equity Shares not held for trade

In Associate Companies

Jatayu Textiles & Industries Limited
(31st March, 2020 : 5,73,900)
Osirig Online Private Limiled

{31st March, 2020 : 3,000)

Sushree Trading Limited
{31st March, 2020 : 5,28,250)

in Other Companies

Aakarshak Synthetics Limited
{315t March, 2020 ; 17,11,000)

Manav (nvestment & Trading Company Limited
(31st March, 2020 : 2,67,300)

Rutgers Investment & Trading Company Private Limited
(31st March, 2020 : 72,000)

Total

Aggregate value of quoted investments
Aggregate value of unquoted nvestments

Face Value

10

10

10

10

10

10

100

100

Number

73,500

1,22,200

90,000

5,73,900

3,000

5,286,250

17,111,000

2.67,300

72,000

As at As at

31 March, 2029 31 March, 2020
(g ¥

48,65,700 22,565,450
2,81,060 2,841,060
2,02.500 2,02,500
53,49,260 27,40,010
1.83,70,553 1,83,70,553
30,075 30,075
1,54,41,534 1,54,41,534
1,61,51,200 1,61,51,200
72,10,000 72,160,000
5,72,03,362 5,72,03,362
6,25,52,522 599,43,372
53,49,260 27,40,010
5,72,02,362 572,031,362



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Gontinued)

for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 5 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Deposits
Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Total

Note 6 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cashin hand

Balances with Banks in
- Current Accounts

Total

Note 7 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid Expenses

Total

Note 8 : CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance Income Taxes (Net of Provision for taxation as on 31.03.2021 -

Re.2,00,000, 31 March, 2020- Rs. 2,00,000)

Total
Note 11 : NON CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for Gratuity
Total
ote 12 : OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Security Deposit
Total

Note 12 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Expenses Payable
Other Payable
Total

14 : CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision for Gratuity

As at Asat

31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
® %)

4,20,200 420,200
410,608 3,886,051
£,30,808 8,08,251
1,050 3,304
30,52,384 18,48 667
30,53,414 18,511,571
77,688 54,528
77,686 54,528
22,65476 4313,397
22,65,476 43,13,397
4,211,033 326,875
4,241,933 3,26,875
1£,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
1,94,880 3,44 637
14,950 12,000
2,09.830 3,56,637
1,366 1,058
1,366 1,058




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Centinued)
for the yaar ended 31st March, 2021

Note 9 : SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at

As at
3 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

®) 4]
Authorised:
12,50,000 {March 31, 2020; 12,50,000) Equity Sharas, of Rs. 10 par valua 1,25,00,000 1,25,00,000

1.25,00,000 1,25,00,000
lasued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Sharas
12.45,000 {March 31, 2020; 12,45,000) Equity Shares, of Rs, 10 par valuve 1,24,50,000 1,24, 50,000

Total 1,24,50,000 1,24,50,000

A) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Share As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020
Description Numbar {%) Homber =
Number of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 12.45,000 1.24 50,000 12,45,060 1,24,50,000
Number of Shares issued during the year - - - .
Number of Shares outstanding at the end of the year 12,45,000 1,24,50,000 12,45.000 1,24,50,000

Term/right attached to equity shares
The Company has only ane class of equity sharss having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied 10 ona vote per share.

Dividends, if any, is declared and paid in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting. However, no dividend is / was declared on the equity shares for the year ended March 34 2021 / March 31, 2020,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of aquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amaunts. The dislibution will be in proportion & the number of squity shares held by the sharehelders.

B} List of shareholder holding more than & % of the paid up Equity Share Capital

Name of Equlty £hare Holder et March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Number % Number %
Askarshak Synthefics Limited 1,70,000 13.65% 1,70,000 13.65%
Ruigers Investments And Trading Gompany Private Limited 1,12,000 9.00% 1,12,000 2.00%
Sushrea Trading Limited 6,22,000 49.96% B.22.000 49.96%
Kajal Synthetics & Silk Mills Limited 206,000 16.55% 2,06,000 16.55%




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements {Continued)

for the year ended 31st March, 2021

NOTE 10 : OTHER EQUITY

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
%) )
(i) Retained Earninas
Balance as per last Financial Statements (2,68,38,869) (1,76,53,849)
Profit/{Loss) for the year {78,14,343 (91,85,020)
Add:Transfer from Special Reserve 92,89,250 -
Total {2,53,63,968) (2,68,38,869)
(ii) Special Reserve
Reserve Fund under RBI Act,1934
Balance as per last Financial Statements $2,89,250 92,89,250
Less: Transferred to Retained Earnings (Refer Note No.32) (92,89,250) -
- 92,89,250
(lif) FVTOCI| Reserves
Balance as per last Financial Statements {5,80,184) 22,111,597
Net Gain/{Loss) on FVTOCI Investments 26,089,250 (25,08,350)
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) 46,893 {2,85,431)
Tax effect on above - -
20,75,959 (5,80,184)
Total {2,32,88,009) {1,81,29,803)

Notes:

Special Reserve : Special reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 {the
"RBI Act”). Appropriation from this Reserve Fund is permitted only for the purposes specified by RBI.

FVTOCI Reserve : The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain instruments in equity
securities and debt instruments in Other Comprehensive Income. These changes are accumulated with the FVOCI
resérve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity
securities are de-recognised.
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Particulars 2020-21 (%) 2019-20 ()
Note 15 : CTHER INCOME
Rent Received 14,40,000 13,32,000
Dividend Received - 25,725
Interest on Incorme Tax Refund 1,39,700 2.88,654
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 14,940 73,036
Miscellaneous Income - 42,000
Total 15,94,640 17,61.415
Note 16 : EMFLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries, Bonus and Aflowances 12,20,400 10,40,250
Gratuity 142,259 42,502
Total 13,62,659 10,82,752
Note 17 : FINANCE COSTS
Interest on Inter Corporate Loan - 1,40,274
Total - 1,440,274
Note 18 : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipments 70,680,134 87,29,657
Total 70,60,134 87,29,657
te 19 ; OTHE EN
Advertisement expenses 25,485 18,047
Bank charges 887 670
Conveyance 3,912 20,054
Credit Information Membership Fess - 5,900
Custodian / ISIN activation charges 21,240 21,240
Demat Account Charges 844 944
Electricity Charges 7,300 5,530
Filing Fees 3,000 10,800
General Expenses 16,193 10,719
Insurance Charges 90,264 70,068
Legal and Professional Charges 59,835 66,660
Listing Fees 3.54,000 3,54,000
Property Tax 1,02,094 1,02,094
Rent Paid 21,420 20,582
Repairs & Maintenance
On Building 64,248 61,776
Telephone Expenses 13,584 17.479
Travelling Expenses - 38,761
Payment to Auditor
Audit Fees 1,50,000 1,00,000
Limited Review 15,000 15,000
Certification 6,000 5,000
Reimbursement of Tax PN 30,780 21,600
Total JONEERI 986,198 5,66,934

A NS ff =" WG




20. Finantial instrument end fair value maasurement

This section explains the judgements and estimates mads n defermmining the fair values of tha financial instrumends that are
measunad at amortisad cost and for which falr valves are disclosed in
vahwo, the Company has classified its financial insiruments nte the

the financial siatements. To provide an indication aboy
three tevels prescribed under the accounting standand. An explanation of

t tha resabiiy of

{a) recognised and measwred at fair value and (b)
ihe inputs used in determining fak
2ach leval fallsws ndemeatt the

lakile.
Carrying Amount Fair Valus
As 8t 318t March, 2021 A% Enir yxllis uf:o:::;vomm.r
' through Profit & Amnetiss Cost Total Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Totaf
Loss Comprehensive
Income
Flnancial Asaots
Cash and Cash Equévalents - - 30,53.444 3053414 - - 30,53, 414 0,55.414
IRvesatmenls - 28710450 338,42 162 6,2552622 | 5349260 - 87203282 6.25,62,622
Olher Financial Asgets - - 8,230,808 330,808 - - §.30.808 £,30.808
- 2.57,10,460 3,77.26, 384 5,64.95,844 | 5349260 - 8.10,87,.584 6.64.38, 844
Finenclal Liabfitles
Bormowings - - - - - - - -
Qther Financial Ligkiliies - - 15.00,00,000 | 15,00,00,000 - - 15,00,00,000 | 15,00,00,000
- - 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 - 15,00,00,000 | 15.00,00,000
Carrylng Ameunt Fair Value
At Fabr valug
Al Fair valua
Asatdtsthamh 2020 | oh Prota | MougnOther | Total Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total
Loss Comprehansiva i
Financlal Axsetis
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 18,51.971 18,51,871 - - 18,51.971 1851971
Irversetments - 261.01,210 3,36.42,162 59943372 | 2740010 - 5.72,03,362 5.9043.372
Clwer Financial Assets - - B8.08.251 8.08,251 - - 808,259 8.08,251
- 2,61.04.210 3,69.02, 384 €.2600.688 | 2740010 - 5.98,63,584 6,26,00,554
Financial Liabilitian
Bomawings - - - . - - . -
Other Finansial Liab&ities - - 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 - - 15.00.00,000 15,00.00,000
- - 1$.00,00.000 15,00.00,000 D - 15,00,00,000 | 15.00,00,000

Level 1: Leval 1 herarchy includas francial instrumendts measured vsin
price. The fair valug of all aquity instrumenls and bonds which are Trade

velued using the closing NAY.

Lavel 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
techniques which maximise (he use of ohsarvable market data and

are observable, the instrument is includad in level 2.

an actve market (for example, traded bonds, over-th

F)

Leve? 3! i one armore of the significantinpuls is nol based on ohservable markat data, tha instrument iz inckeded Iy level 3

The camying emounts of rade receivables, trade pa

term nature.

For iinancisd assets and lishiliies that are messured at fair value, the <amying emounts are equal to the fair values,

\

.-/

'\L-/

rety as It as possible on entity-specific estimates. i al) significant inu-m:

g quoted prices. This includes lisled equity Inslruments, traded bonds and mutual funds et have quoted
din the: stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting periad. The mutual funds are

vatives) s determined using valaton
required 13 fair value an instrument

yables, capital steditors and cash and cash equivalends are considared 19 be the same a5 their fair values, due 1o ihelr short-



21 Capital Management:

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies
with externally imposad capital requirements and maintains strong credit ralings and healthy capital ratios in
arder to support its business and to maximise shareholders value,

Tne Company manages its capital struclure and makes adjustments (o it according o changes In economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. Capital Managament Policy, objaclives and processes
are under constant review by the Board.

22 Financlal Risk Management Objectives and Policies:

The Company’s principal financial liabllities comprise Secwity Deposits and Provisions. The Parent
Company's financial assets include lnvestments and Cash and Cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations,

The Company Is exposed 1o credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's board of direclors has an
overalt responsibility for the establistment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framewori. The
board of direclors has established the risk management commitiee, which is responsible for developing and
monitering the Company's risk management policies. The commities reports to the board of directors on its
activities,

The Company’s risk managemeant policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to sel appropriale risk limits and controls and 1o monitor fisks and adherence to Kmits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities,

Te Company's fisk management commitice overseas how management monitors compliance with the

Company's risk management poficies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
iramework in refation to the risks faced by the Company.

1} Gredit risk

Credit rigk is the risk of financial loss te the Company if a custorner fails to meet its contractual obligations and
anses principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans. The carrying amounts of financial
assals represent the maximurm credit risk exposure.

Investments

The major invesiments of the Company is in the graup companies which Includes investment in an associate.

Cash and cash equivalent and Bank deposits

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank deposils is limited as the fund are in Cumant Account and
sometimes in invests in term deposits with banks.

2} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its

financial fiabililies. The Company's approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds
1o meel its liabilities when due.

The Company is monitoring its liquidity sk by estimating the future inflows and outfiows during the start of the
year and planned accordingly the funding requirement. The Cormpany manages its liquidity by term loans, infer-
corporale deposit and investment in muiual funds.

The table below summarises the maturily profile of the Company’s non-derivative finandial liabilies based on
contractual undiscounted payments afong with its camying value as at the balance shest date.

Az at 31 March, 2021

Particular Mora than 42
Up to 12 months months Total
Security Deposit 15.00,00,000 - 15.00,00,600
As at 31 March, 2020
Particular More than 12
Up to 12 months months Total
Security Deposit 15,00.00,000 - 15.00.00,000
3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of & finaneial instrument will flucluate because of
changes in market prices. -

Market risk inclides interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective of market risk management is o
manage and control market risk exposuresilithin-acteptable parsmaters, while optimizing the return.




23 Income Taxes & Deferred Taxes (Ind AS - 12}

There are no Income Tax recognised during the financial year. Furtliér, in absence of near probability of taxable
profits in future periods, the Company has not recognised Deferred Taxes.

24 Gratuity and other post empleyment benefit plans (lnd AS - 18)

Defined Benefit Pians

Gratuity:

The gratuity payable to employees is baged on the employee's service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving
the services of the Company and is in accordance with the rules of the Company for payment of gratuity.

Inherent Risk:

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks
pertaining to the plan. In particular, this exposes the Company to actuarial risk such as advarse salary growth,
change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets. This may result in an increase in
cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the bensfits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not
subject to any longevity risks.

Statement of Assets and Liabilities for Defined Benefit Obligation :

For the year For the year ended
ended March 31, 2020
«tarch 31, 2021

Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans
(i) Change in present value of obligation

FPVO at the beginning of period 3,727,933 -
interest cost 22,299 -
Current Service cost 1,189,960 42 502

Past Service Cost - (Non-Vested Benefits) - -
Past Service Cost - (Vested Benefits) - -
Benefit settled - -
Contribution by participants - -
Business Combinations - -
Curtailments - -
Settlements - -
Actuarial {gain)/ loss on obligation (46,893) 285,431
PVO atthe end of period t 4,23,299 327933

(if) Changes in the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at baginning of period - -
Adjustment to Opening Balance - -
Expected return on pian assets excl, interest income - -
Interest Income - -
Contributions by Employer - -
Contributions by Employee - -
Benefits Paid - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of period - -

i) Amount to be recognised in Balance Sheet

PVO at the end of period 423,280 3,27 933
Fair value of plan assets at end of year - -
Funded Status {4,23,299) (3,27,933)

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet {4,23,299) (3.27,933)




{ivl Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service cost 1,19,980 42 502
Net Interest cost 22,299
Past Service Cost - {Non-Vested Benefits) -
Past Service Cost - (Vested Benefits) -
Curtaiiment Effect -
Seltlernent Effect -
Unrecognised Past Service Cost {Non-Vested Benefits) - -
Actuarial {gain)/ ioss recognised for the period {45,893} 2,85431
Return on plan assets excl. net interest - -
Expenses recegnised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 142280 3,27 933

(v} Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period (46,893) 2,85431
Asset limit effect - -
Return on Plan Assets exct. net interest - -
Unrecognized Actuarial {Gain)Loss from previous period

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in (OCI) (45,803) 2,854
(vl) Movement in the Yiability recognised In Balance Shest
Liability at the beginning of the period 327,933 -
Adjustment te Opening Balance - -
Expenses 1,42,259 42502
Contribution paid - -
Other Comprehansive Incoms {(OC1) {46,893) 2.85.431
Net amount recognised in Balance Sheet 4,23,299 3,27.933

{vii) Expected Payout
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

1st Foilowing Year 1,366 1,217
2nd Following Year 1,631 1,361
3rd Following Year 1,720 1,525
4th Following Year 1,933 1,710
5th Following Year 2,282 1,920
Sum of Years 6 To 10 165,764 13,968
{vill) Assumptions i
Mortaiity IALM (2008-08) Uit. IALM (2005-08) Uit
Interest / Discounl Rate 6.79% 6.80%
Rate of Increase in Compensation 12.00% 12.00%
Expected Average Remaining Age 18.93 19.74
Employee Attrition rate P301060:0.80% PSO0to60:0.80%
{ix) Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 4,23,299 3,27,933
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting 344277 3,07,368
Deita Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting $,22,350 4,76,252
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increass 5,165,931 4,70,165
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Saiary increase 3,47,249 3,10,143




Marrations
1. Expected rate of return basis
Schame is not funded EORA is not applicable

2. Description of Plan Assets and Relmbursement Congditions

100% of the Pian Asset is entrusted to 0 under their Group Gratuity Scheme. The reimbursement is subject to
insurer's Surrender Policy.

3. Invastment / Interest Risk

The Company is exposed {o Investment / Interest risk if the return on the invested fund falls below the discount
rate used to arrive at present vatue of the benafit

4. Longevity Risk

The Compary is not exposed to risk of the employees living longer as the benefit under the scheme caases on
the smployee separating from the employer for any reason.

8. Risk of Salary Increase
The Company is exposed to higher liability if the future salaries rise more than assumption of salary escalation.

€. Discount Rate

The discount rate has remain unchanged and hence there is no change in liability resulting in no actuarial gain
or loss dug to change in discount rate,

25 Related Party Disclosures (ind AS - 24)
A. Name of related parties and related party relationship:

Key Management Personnel
G. M. Loyalka Director
Manish Newar Director
R. D. Bhatter Director
Rajshree Tapuriah Director
Nitin Agarwal Managing Director
Aril Londhe Chief Financial Officer
Shruit Didwania Company Secretary
B Following transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of business with the parties referred to in (A)
above:
. Particulars Forthe year  |For the year ended
ended March 21, | March 31, 2020
2021
i. |Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 13,62,659 10,82,752

The remuneration of key management personnel are determined by the nomination and remuneration
Sommittee having regard 1o the performance of individuals and market trenrs,

€ Disclosures as per Regulation 53(f) of Secwurities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 204 5). Loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies in which
directors are interested as under:




Period Balance of Loans | Maximum balance
as at outstanding durin
the year

31st March, 2021
31st March, 2020

Note : Related Parties are disclosed by the management and relied upon by the auditors.

26 Earnings Per Share {ind AS - 33)

27

28

29

30

31

32

Particulars Forthe year [For the year ended
ended March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021
Net Profit/{Loss) After Tax as per Statement of Profit and loss (78,14,249) (91,85,020)
Weighied Average Number of Equity Shares 12,45,000 12,485,000
Basic and Diluted earnings per Share (In Rs.) (6.28) (7.38)
Nominal Value Per Share (In Rs.) 10.00 10.00

Note : The Company does not have any dilutive potential equity shares, Consequently the basic and diluted
earnings per share of the Company remain the same.

Contingent Liabilities not provided (Ind AS - 37)

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for — Rs. Nil (PY -
Rs. Nil).

b. Other Contingent Liabilities not provided for - Re. Nil {PY - Rs. Nil).

Segment Reporting (Ind AS - 108)
The Company operates mainly in the business segment of fund based leasing & financing activity. All other activities

revolve around the main business. Further, alt activities are cartied out within India. As such, there are no separate
feportable segments as per the provisions of IND AS 108 on '‘Operating Segments’.

Leases {Ind AS - $18)

Ind AS 118 did not have any material impact on the financial position of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2021,

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Based on the intimation received by the Company, nong of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under “The
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED") Act, 2008", Accordingly, no disclosures relating to
amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid fpayable are required to be furnished.

The provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to investment and lending activities were not
applicable to the Company since the Company was an NBFC whose principal business was acquisitions of
securities. Further, during the year, the Company has not provided any guarantee (Refer Note No. 27).

Pursuant to the RBI letter having ref. 1287/14112-14-023/2018-12 dated 17.03.2020, the Company, vide its reply
letter dated 12.08,2020, has sumendered its Original Certificate of Reqistration issued by the RBI stating that the
principal business of the Company is no longer that of a NBFC,

Consequently, standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 is presented as per the format
applicable to Non-NBFC Companies and previous year's figures are also restated accordingly.

Further, an amount of Rs.92,89,250/- appearing as at the begining of the period towards Special Reserve required
to be maintained under Reserve Fund under RBI Act, 1934 has been transferred to Retained Eamings since
principal business of the Company is no longer that of a NBFG.




33 There are no amounts due and autstanding to be credited to Inve;lor Education & Protection Fund as at March 31,

34

36

2021

While determining diminution, other than temporary, in the value of the long term quoted / unquoted investments,
the strategic objective of such investments and the asset base of the investee companies have been considered. In
view thereof, the decline in the market value of such investmentts is considered to be of a temporary nature,

COVID-19 outbreak declared as a global pandemic by the WHO has continued to spread rapidly leading to
extension of nationwide lockdown with minor exemptions and quarantine measures stalling economic activity. The
Company has been in operation with minimal permitted staff. The Company has not faced any snaterial adversity of
its financial position as at March 31, 2021 and considering other relavant facts and circumstances existing as of that
date, the Company does not anticipate any material uncertainties which affects it liquidity position and also ability fo
continue as a going concemn. However, the impact of the global heaith pandemic may differ from that estimated as at
the date of approval of the financial results and the Company will continue to closely monitor and materiat changes
to future economic conditions.

In the opinion of the Board, the Current assets, and Loans and Advances have a value on realisation in the ordinary
course of the business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the books of account and adequate
provision has been made of founds all known liabilities.

37 a) Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary to correspond with the

figure of the current period.

b) Figures have been rounded off to nearest rupee.

As per our report of even date sitached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KARNAVAT & CO.

Chariered Accountants /(
Firm Regn. No. 104883wW

@‘m((?\ = <. ..\

= Sa—— A
(ViralJosti) (GM. Loyal\lga> (Nitin Agarwal)
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No: 137688 DIN: 00299416 DIi: 03186?33
ﬁl\’/ o~
Place ; Mumbai (Shruti Didwania) {Anil Londhe)
Date: June 29, 2021 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

UDIN : 21137686AAAAGPB098
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of NILKANTH
ENGINEERING LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the 'Parent Company”) and its three
Associate Companies (together referred to as “Group”), which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information (collectively referred to as ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and its
profit, total comprehensive incorme, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rufes thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note No.35 to the Consolidated Financial Statement for the
year ended March 31, 2021, which describes the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus
(COVID-19) on the business operations. In view of the highly uncertain economic
environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highty
dependent upon circumstances as they evolve,
’:'ﬂ‘_L—__. —T.
L§> '~ (Cont..2)

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter,
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Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our professional judgment were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated in our report:

Sr. Na. Key Audit Matter

Our Response

1 Defined benefit obligation

The valuation of the retirement
benefit schemes in the Company is
determined with reference to
various  actuarial  assumptions
including discount rate, future
salary increases, rate of inflation,
mortality rates and attrition rates,
Due to the size of these schemes,
small changes in these
assumptions can have a material
impact on the estimated defined
benefit obligation.

We have examined the key controls over the
process involving member data, formulation
of assumptions and the financial reporting
process in arriving at the provision for
retirement benefits. We tested the controls
for determining the actuarial assumptions
and the approval of those assumptions by
senior management. We found these key
controls were designed, implemented and
operated effectively, and therefore
determined that we could place refiance on
these key controls for the purposes of our
audit,

We tested the employee data used in
calculating the obligation and where
material, we also considered the treatment
of curtailments, settlements, past service
costs, remeasurements, benefits paid, and
any other amendments made to obligations
during the vyear. From the evidence
obtained, we found the data and
assumptions used by management in the
actuarial valuations for retirement benefit
obligations to be appropriate.

2 Modified Audit Procedures
carried out in light of COVID-
19 outbreal:

Due to COVID-19 pandemic,
Nation-wide lockdown and travel
restrictions imposed by Central/
State Government/ Local
Authorities during the period of
our audit to facilitate carrying out
audit remotely wherever physical
access was not possible, audit
could not be conducted by visiting
the premises of the Parent
Company.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
that caused nationwide lockdown and other
travel restrictions imposed by the Central
and State Governments/local administration
during the period of ocur audit, we could not
travel to the Parent Company’s Office and
carry out the audit processes physically.

Wherever physical access was nat possible,
necessary records/ reports/ documents/
certificates were made available to us
through digital medium and emails. To this
extent, the audit process was carried out on
the basis of such documents, reports and
records made available to us which were
relied upon as audit evidence for conducting
the audit and reporting for the current

period. T

_j."'. ( \i}*'.’i’-"- )
5(, _ (Cont..3)
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As we could not gather audit | Accordingly, we modified our audit
evidence in person/physically/ | procedures as follows:
through discussions and personal
interactions with the officials at | a. Conducted verification of necessary
the Parent Company’s Office, we records/ documents through emails
have identified such modified wherever physical access was not
audit procedures as a Key Audit possible.
Matter.
b. Carried out verification of scanned copies
Accordingly, our audit procedures of the documents, deeds, certificates and
were modified to carry out the the related records made available to us
audit remotely. through emaiis.
¢. Making enquiries and gathering necessary
audit evidence through Video
Conferencing, dialogues and discussions
over phone calis/conference calls, emails
and similar communication channels,
d. Resolution of our audit observations
telephonically/through email instead of a
face-to-face interaction with  the
designated officiatls.

Other Information

The Parent Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not

inciude the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
[

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information i
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report the fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in term of the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financiat
position, consolidated financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income,
consalidated cash flows and consolidated Changes in Equity of the Group in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of i
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appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Parent
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group
to continue as a going concern, disdosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasohable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,

+ FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

27 =T (Cont..5)
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s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in ocur auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, If
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern,

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated
Financiaf Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all reiationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Other Matters

The Consolidated Financial Statements/information comprised in the Group’s Consolidated
Financial Statements are inclusive of Rs.16,39,548/- being the Parent Campany’s share in
the net Loss of its two associate companies for the year ended 31st March, 2021, which
Consolidated Financial Statements/financial information have not been audited by us.
These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these associates is based solely on the information and explanation
provided by the management.

Gur opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above mattegfs' iﬁ_ﬁtl‘__\- g:éspect
to our reliance on the work done and the financial statements cer
Management. '
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law to be maintained by the
Group including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements, have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and records of the Parent Company;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account and records maintained by the Group
for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Group
Companies as on March 31, 2021, and taken on record by the respective Board of
Directors, none of the directors of the Group Companies is disqualified as on March
31, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent Company to its directors during the
year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
and the operating effectiveness of such controls relevant to the Parent Company’s
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, we refer to Annexure-8 of our
report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Parent Company;

and
&/"’f - (COI’]t..?}
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h) With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report

that:

i) There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated

financiat position of the Group.

i) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term

contracts including derivative contracts,

iii)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent Company and its

Associate Companies.

Place : Mumbai
Dated : June 29, 2021

For and on behalf of
KARNAVAT & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 104863W

(;ﬁ-\almff; -
Partner

Membership No. 137686



WILAAN I ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

Particularg

ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
{b) Financial Assets
i} Investments
i} Other Financial Assets

Total Non-Current Assets
2. Current Assets
(@) Financial Assets
i} Cash and Cash Equivalents
(b} Other Current Assats
(c} Current Tax Assets (Net)

Total Current Assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(B) Cther equity

2. Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(&) Provisions

3. Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
i) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Other Current Liabilities
{c} Provisions

Total Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statemeants,

As per our report of even date attached
KARNAVAT & CO.

Chartered Accountants e
Firm Regn. No. 104883W 77 A7 &

Partner
Membership No: 137686

Place : Mumbal
Date: June 29, 2021
UDIN : 21137686AAAAGQI5452

[+ B %
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11

12
13
14

182

<.

As at
31 March, 2021

%)

As at
31 March, 2020

{®)

7,10,15,114 7,80,33,248
1,20,90,45,044 1,15,73,72672
8,30,808 8,08,251
1,28,08,90,966 1,23,62,14,171
30.,53.414 18,561,971
77,686 54,528
22,65.476 43,13,397
§3,96,576 62,119,898
1,28,62,87,542 1,24,24,34,067
‘z_'___._‘—__—__—’———___
1,24,50,000 1,24,50,000
1,12,32,04,413 1,07,92,99,497
1,13,56,54,413 1,09,17,49,497
4,21,933 3,286,875
15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
2,09,830 3,56,637
1,366 1,058
15,06,33,129 15,06,84,570

1,28,62,87,542

1,24,24,34,067

N .

{G.M. Loyatka)
Director
DIN: 00295418

7

(Shrutl Didwania)
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

{Nitin Agarwal)
Managing Director
DIN: 08186528

“3\@\)/,

{(Anil Londhe}

Chief Financial Officer



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC020360

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Particulars

L. Income
Other Income
Taotal Income

it. Expenses

Employse Benefit Expensas

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Other Expenses

Total Expenses
Nl. Profitf{Loss) BeforeTax(lii-1v)

IV. Tax Expensas
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Excess/(Short) Provision of Earlier Years

V. Net Profit After Tax

V1. Share of Profit from Associates
Profit after tax and Share in Profit of Assoclates

Vii. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Other Comprehensive Income niot to be reclassified
to profit and loss in subsequent pericds
Actuarial Gainf{Loss)
Net Gain/(Loss) on FVTOCI Investmants
Total Other Comprehensive Income

Viit. Total Comprehensive Income for the year

IX. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (Face value
¥ 10 each)

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
KARNAVAT & CD,

Chartered Accountants =

Firm Regn. No, 104833W f/' i

(Vlral-dﬁshfj"‘
Partner N\ i
Membership No: 137686 =

Place : Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2021
UDIN : 21137686AAAAGQS5452

Notes

15

16
17
18
18

26

1&2

— S

{G.M. Loyalka(}\
Director
DIN: &

4

{Shruii Didwania)
Company Sacrstary

o416

2020.21 (%) 2019-20 (¥)
15,54 640 17 61,415
15,94,640 17.61,415
13,62,659 10,82,752
- 140,274
70,60,134 87.20,657
0,86,198 9,658,034
84,08,989 1,08,19,617
(78,14,349) (91,58,202)
- {26,818)
(78,14,349) (91,85,020)
1,54 41,641 (1,93,19,863)
76,27,292 {2,85,04,883)
46,893 (2,85,431)
3,82,30.731 (1.12 53,55 583)
3,62,77.624 (1,12,56,41,014)
4,39,04,916 {1,15,41,45,807)
6.13 (22.90)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

{Niirr Agarwal)
Managing Diractor
DiN: 08186528

d')\Qéy"/"
(Anil Londhe)
Chief Financial Officer



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN : L27300MH1983PLC029360
Consolidated Gash Flow Statement for the yoear endad 31st March, 2021

. Year Ended
Particulars 2020-21 (¥) 2019-20 (€}
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before taxation and axtraordinary iterns (78,14,349) (91,58,202)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation ang amotisation expense 70,60,134 87,209,657
Provision for Expenses 2,10,138 6,84,570
Prepaid Expenses 77,688 54,528
(Profit)Loss on Sale of Investments {14.940) (73,0386)
Interest Expense - 140,274
Dividend Income - (17.61.415)
Operating Profit hefore working capital changss (4,81,331) (13,83,624)
Increasef{Decrease) in Surwlry Payables & Other Liabilifies (2,14,686) (4.20,820)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables 18,16,520 33,75.033
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories - -
Cash gensratsd from operations 14,20,603 15,70,58%
Less: Direct Taxes paid ___(1,08,000) 1,33,200
Net Cash Flow from operating activities before extraordinary Items 12,28,503 14,37,389
Adjustments for Prior Period ttems - -
Net Cash Flow from operating activitios {A) 12,28,503 14,37,389
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Sale of Investments (net) 14,940 476,569
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (42,000 {94,400)
Dividend Income - 17,681,415
Met Cach fromi{used) in Investing activities {B) (27,060) 29,43,584

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Loan Taker / (Repaid) - {32,00,000)

Interest Paid - (1,40,274)
Net Cash from/{used) In financing activities (c) - {33,40,274)
Net Increasef(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 12,01,443 2,40,699
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at beginning of period 18,561,971 16,111,272
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at eng of period 30,53.414 18,541,971

1. Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statement of cash flows comprise the following ;

2020-21 (¥) 2049-20 (¥)
Cash on hand 1,050 3304
Balance in current account 30,52,364 16.48,667
Cash and cash equivalents as restated 30,53,414 18,541,971

2. Direqt Tax paid are treated as arising from operating activity and not bifurcated in investmant and financing activilies.
3. Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary io correspand with the figures of
the cument year.

4. Figures in brackets represent outflows.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
KARNAVAT & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. MNo. 104863W

o

(:““" i §—‘m - —

Mﬁ ohif— \ - {GM. Lovalka) {
Partner AN Diréctor Managing Dlrector
Membership No: 137686 DIN; 00200416 DIN: C8186528

Place : Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2021
UDIN : 21137686AAAAGQS5452

W e

N {Shruti Didwania) {Anil Londhe)
\x o I [sy/4 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CiN: U64200MH2000PTC 129356

Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 315t March, 2021

Equity Share Capital:

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Number Amount (%)
At 01 April, 2019 12,45,000 1,24,50,000
lssue of share capital - -
At 31 March, 2019 12,45,000 1,24,50,000
At 01 Aprit, 2020 12,45,000 1,24,50,000
Issue of share capital - -
At 31 March, 2021 12,45,000 1,24,50,000
Other Eou
Amount {%)
Reserve and Surplus itams of OCI
Particutars Reserve Fund under Retained Earnings Net Gain/(Loss) on Total Equity
RBI Act, 1934 9 | FVTOC Investments

Balance as at 01 April, 2019 92,89,280 {1,78,11,413) 2.24,19,67,557 2,23,34,45,394
Profit/(Loss) for the year - {2,85,04,883) - {2,85,04,883)
NetGain/{Loss) on FVTOC! lnvestments - - {25,06,350) {25,06,350)
Net Gain/{Loss) on FVTOC! Invesiments of
Associates - - (1,12,28,49,233) (1,12,28,49,233)
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) - - {2,85431) {2,85.431)
Tax effect on above - - - -

. (4,63,186,298) 1,11,63,26,843 1,07.92,99,497
Transfer to Reserve Fund under RBI Act 3 - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 92,890,250 (4,63,16,296) 1,11,63,26,543 1,07,92,99,497

Amount (%)
Reserve and Surplus items of OCI
P
articulars Reserve Fund under Retained Eamings Net Gain/Loss) on Total Equity
RBI Act,1934 9% | FVTOG) Investments

Balance as at 01 April, 2020 92,89,250, {4,63,16,296) 1,11,63,26 543 1.07,92,99,497
Profit/{Loss) for the year - 76,27,202 - 78,27,2%2
NetGain/{Loss) on FUTOC! Investments - - 26,09,250 26,09,250
Net Gainf{Loss} on FVTOCI Investments of
Associates - - 3,36,21,481 3,36,21,481
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) - 46,893 46,393
Tax effect on above - - - -

- {J,86,89,004) 1,15,26,04,167 1,12,32,04,913
Transfer from Reserve Fund under RE) Act
(Refer Note No.32) (92,89,250) 92,89,250 - .
Balance as at 31 March , 2021 - (2,93,99,754} 1,15,26,04,167 1,12,32,04,413

As per our report of even date attached
KARNAVAT & COQ.

Chartered Accountants

Fimn Regn. No. 1048

Partnar
Membership No: 137686°

Place : Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2021
LDIN : 21137688AAAAGR5452

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S e ln

{G.M. Loyalka)
Director
DIN: 00292416

4

{Shruti Didwania)
Company Secretary

—

{Nitin Agarwal)
Managing Director
DiIN:08186528

G

{Anll Londhe)

Chief Financial Officer




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L.27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying consolidated financial staterents.

1. Background

Nilkanth Engineering Limited (‘the Company’) is domiciled in India and is incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity Number
L27300MH1983PLC029360. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange in India.
The Company is engaged in the activity of financial planning, renting and related activities,

2. Significant Accounting Policies

i} Overall consideration

The Parent Company was not satisfying principal business criteria during the FY 2020-
21, the principal business of the Parent Company has ceased to be that of a NBFC in
terms of Press Release No. 1998-99/1269 dated 08.04.1999 issued by the RBI. Hence,
as desired by RBI, the Parent Company has surrendered its Qriginal Certificate of
Registration issued by the RBI and that the principal business of the Parent Company is
no longer that of a NBFC. Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements are
presented as per the format applicable to Non-NBEC Companies.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the significant
accounting policies and measurement basis summarised below.

if) Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards {‘Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended).

ili}  Principals of Consolidation

L. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Parent Company and its
associates have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS 110
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and Ind AS - 28 ‘“Investment in
Associates™ notified under section 133 of the Conipanies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 3 of the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended).

i. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the foilowing
basis:

Investments in associates are accounted under equity method as per Ind AS -
28 "Investment in Associates”. Under the equity method, the investment is
intially recorded at cost, identifying goodwill/capital reserve arising at the time
of acquisition and the carrying amount is increased/ decreased to recognize
Parent Company's share of profitsilosses of the associates after the date of
acquisition. Goodwill/Capital reserve arising on acquisition of the associates is
included in the carrying amount of the respective investments. Unrealized




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

profits resulting from transactions between the Parent Company and the
associates are eliminated to the extent of Parent Company's interest in the
associates. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions have also
been eliminated except to the extent that recoverable value of related assets is
lower than their cost to the Parent Company.

il.  The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented, to the extent possible,
in the same format as that adopted by the Parent Company for its separate
financial statements.

iv.  The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting

policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances to the
extent possible.

v.  The companies considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are listed

below:
Date of % Holding
ﬁ: Name of the Company ! nﬁg"";zt?; n Becoming as on

b Associate | 31.03.2024

1 | Jatayu Textiles & industries India 31.10.2012 28.81%

Limited
2 | Osiris Online Private Limited India 26.02,2010 30.00%
Sushree Trading Limited Indlia 31.12.2011 42.43%

iv)  Basis of preparation

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or are vision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupees (INR) and
all values are rounded to the rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

v) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are
made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in
the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC 029360

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2021

vi)

Applicability of new and revised Ind AS:

a) Newamended standards and interpretation

:
8

vi.

vii.

viit.

Ind AS 1 Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements - Substitution of the
definition of term ‘Material’.

Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - In order
to maintain consistency with Ind AS 1, the respective changes have been made to
Ind AS 8 also.

ind AS 10 Events after the Reporting Period - Clarification on the disciosures
requirements to be made in case of 2 material non- adjusting event.

Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - In order to maintain consistency with the
amendments made in other Ind AS, respective changes have been made to Ind AS
34,

Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Clarification on
the accounting treatment for restructuring plans.

Ind AS 103 Business Combination - Detailed guidance on term ‘Business' and
‘Business Combination’ along with providing an Optional test to identify concentration
of Fair Value,

Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Clarification on certain disclosures
to be made in respect of uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmark reforms,
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - Clarification on temporary exceptions from
applying specific hedge accounting requirements along with providing guidance on
transition for hedge accounting.

ind AS 116 Leases - Clarification on whether rent concessions as a direct

consequence of COVID- 18 pandemic can be accounted as lease modification or
not.

None of the amendments has any material impact on the consolidated financial
statements for the current year,

b} New standards notified and yet to be adopted by the Parent Company - None

vii)

Current / non-current classification

Assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are classified into current/ non-current. An asset
is clagsified as current when it is:

L]
L ]
*

Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seftle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal cperating cycle
Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

% = |




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at Jeast twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

As the Parent Company's normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable due to the

varying nature of each project, the normal operating cycle has been assumed to be twelve
months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liahilities
respectively.

viii) Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to
the Parent Company and that revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payments is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding duties and taxes collected on behaif of the Government,

The Parent Company foltows the prudential norms for income recognition and provides
for fwrites off Non-Performing Assets as per the prudential norms prescribed by the
Reserve Bank of India or earlier as ascertained by the management.

a. Dividend income

Income is recognized as and when the Parent Company'’s rights to receive the payment
is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

In case of interim dividend, the right to receive the payment is established, when the
dividend gets approved by the Board of Directors,

In case of final dividend, the right to receive the payment is established, when the dividend
gets approved by the shareholder’s in the annual general meeting.

b. InterestIncome

For all the debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exaclly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gress carrying amount of the financial asset or to
amortised cost of financial liability. When calculating EIR, the Parent Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider expected credit losses.




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

c. Other Operational Revenue

Other operational revenue represents income eamed from the activities incidental to the

business and is recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the
terms of the contract,

ix)  Property, plant and equipment

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Parent Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated
depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. The lotal cost of assets comprises its
purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Changes in the
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. Costs also

include borrowing costs for qualifying assets capitalised in accordance with the Parent
Company’s accou nting policy.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value
only if itincreases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed
standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Depreciation is recognised using Written Down Value method so as to write off the cost
of the assets {other than freehold land)) less their residual values over their useful lives
specified in Schedule If to the Companies Act, 2013, or in case of assets where the useful
life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined.
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the
period of use. Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future petiods in

such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining
useful life.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted, if appropriate.

X) Leased assets

Aright-of-use asset representing the right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing the obligation to make lease payments is recognized for all leases over 1
year on initial recognition basis. Discounted committed & expected future cash flows
recognised as right-of-use asset and lease liability and depreciation on the asset portion
on straight-line basis & interest on liability portion (net of lease payments) on EIR basis
is recognized over the expected lease term. No right-of-use asset is created for short
term leases (i.e. lease term less than 1 year) and leases of low value items (i.e. lease of
asset with original cost of less than Rs.1 lakh},



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

xf) Impairment testing of assets

The Parent Company reviews the carrying values of assets for any possible impairment
at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the assets net of selling price or value in use. In
assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value based on appropriate discount rate. If at the balance sheet date there is any
indication that a previously assessed impaired loss no longer exists then such loss is
reversed and the asset is restated to that extent.

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a resuit, some

assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level,

Cash-generating units (determined by the Parent Company’s management as equivalent
to its operating segments) are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

xii}  Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

a. Classification of Financial Instruments

At initial measurement, the Parent Company classifies its financial assets into the
following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost;

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income;
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account.

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows
and the Parent Company’s business model for managing financial assets which are
explained below:

Business Model Assessment

The Parent Company determines its business mode! at the level that best reflects how
it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Parent
Company’s business model is not assessed on an instrurnent-by-instrument basis, but
at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without

taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial

recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Parent Company’s original

expectations, the Parent Company does not change the classification of the remaining

financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when

assessing newly originated or newly purchased j},aﬁﬁjdi@[gs\gets going forward, ~
7 MOPN
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process the Parent Company assesses the
contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet the SPP) test.
‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset.

In making this assessment, the Parent Company considers whether the contractual
cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a
profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual
terms infroduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Parent Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has
designated liabilities at fair value through the statement of Profit and Loss account or
is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative

liabilities,
. Financial Assets

i.  Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. In the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset are also considered.

li. Investments in associates

The Parent Company measurss investments in Equity instruments of associates at
cost.

iii. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three
categories:

{(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost.

(b} Debt instruments and investment in Preference Shares at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL).

(¢} Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI).
(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method, Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the profit or loss.

(b) Debt instruments and investment in Preference Shares at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

A debt instrument shall be measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, which generally occurs when the SPP! criterion is not met
by the debt instrument.

{c) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)

For all equity instruments other than the ones classified as at FVTPL, the Parent
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Parent Company makes such

election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Parent Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then
all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the
OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from QC} to P&L, even on sale of

investment. However, the Parent Company transfers the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

iv. Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet)
when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

V. Impairment

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Parent Com pany applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the Trade receivables or
any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 115. ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Parent Company in accordance with the

contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR.

The Parent Company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount
equal fo the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial-asset
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has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Parent Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month expected
credit losses.

No Expected credit losses are recognised on equity investments.

¢. Financial Liabilities

i, Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, Ioans and borrowings, financial guarantee, contract
payables, or derivative instruments.

ii. Subsequent measurement

(a)

(b)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include finangcial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. '

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied, For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains / losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCl. These gains / losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Parent Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or ioss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Parent

Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transactions costs) and
the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
\ |



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

iil. Derecognition

A financial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the Jiability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

d. Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiiities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Xiii) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under
current market conditions.

The Parent Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one
of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement
which are described as follows:

() Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

(b) Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than
quoted prices included within level 1 for the asset or liability.

{c) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant
modifications to observable related market data or Parent Company’s assumptions
about pricing by market participants.

xiv) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Parent Company that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results
are regularly reviewed by the Parent Company’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the management
approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the
Parent Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of varicus
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments,




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC0292360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

xv) Income taxes

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the
determination of the net profit or loss for the year. Provision for current income tax is
made on the basis of the assessable income under the Income tax Act, 1961,

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current
tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are recognised for ali temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax
loss or deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable income. This

is assessed based on the Parent Company’s forecast of future operating resuits, adjusted

for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any
unused tax loss or credit.

xvi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with
other short-term, highly liguid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

xvii} Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued. Share
premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from: share premium, net of any
related income tax benefits. Other components of equity include the following:

¢ Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability — comprises the actuarial losses from
changes in demographic and financial assumptions and the return on plan assets.

* Reserves for financial instruments measured at FVOCI.
+ Retained earnings includes all current and prior period retained profits.

xviii} Post-employment benefits and longishort-term employee benefits



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately
in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Past service cost, both vested and unvested, is
recognised as an expense at the sarlier of

(@)when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and

{b)when the entity recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any

asset resuiting from this calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and
deductions in future contributions to the scheme.

The Parent Company provides benefits such as gratuity to its employees which are
treated as defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees
have rendered setvices entitling them to such benefits.

The Parent Company provides benefits such as superannuation, provident fund to its
employees which are treated as defined contribution plans.

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the
expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

xix) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Parent Company has a present obligation {legal or
constructive) as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a realisable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as a finance cost. —=u
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

xx)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred. Costs in
connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition
of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, over the tenure of
the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilized for qualifying assets, peraining to the
period from commencement of activities relating to construction/development of the

qualifying asset upto the date of capitalization of such asset is added to the cost of the
assets.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

xxi) Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes in respect of possible
obligations that arise from past events but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Parent Company.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements by way of notes
to accounts, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

xxii) Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the Year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the Year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss for the Year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the Year is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

xxiii} Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, management makes a number of
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies
of the Parent Company that have the most significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change the utility of certain
software and IT equipment.

| &



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L 27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Lease term of right-of-use assets

Management reviews its estimate of the lease term of right-of-use assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the leased property. Uncertainties in this
estimate relate to business obsolescence/discontinuance that may change the lease term
for certain right-of-use assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use, The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in
use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Parent Company
is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's
performance of the CGU being tested, The recoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of crifical underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, monrtality, discount rate and anticipation
of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the
DBO amount and the annual defined bensfit expenses,

xxiv) Recent pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™ through a notification,
amended Schedule |1l of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division |, ||
and Hl of Schedule 11l and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to
Division |l which relate to companies whose consolidated financial statements are
required to comply with Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial
liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

+ Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as
changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances
at the beginning of the current reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.
Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital
work-in-progress and intangible asset under development.

» If a Parent Company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was
borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where
it has been used.

» Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance
with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of
companies, fitle deeds of immovable not held in name of Parent —.
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: L27300MH1983PLC029360

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Company, loans and advances to promoters,

directors, key managerial personne!
(KMP) and related parties, details of benami

property held etc.
Statement of profit and loss:

« Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR),
undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head

‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the consolidated financial
statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Parent Company will evaluate the same to
give effect to them as required by law.
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
for the year ended 315t March, 2021

Note 4 : INVESTMENTS

Particulars

Investments at Fai lua through OCI (FVTOCI

I} Quoted Equity Shares not held for trade
Jay Shree Tea & Indusiries Limitad
(31st March, 2020 : 73,500)

Mansoon Trading Company Limited
(315t March, 2020 : 1,22,200)

Meenakshi Sieel Industries Limited
{315t March, 2020 : 50,000)

li) Unquoted Equity Shares not held for trade

in Assoclate Companies

Jataya Textiles & Industries Limiled
(31st March, 2020 ; 5,73,900)

Add: Post Acquisilion Profit/(Loss)
Add: Goodwil{Capital Reserve) on Investment in
Associales

Osiris Online Private Limited

(315t March, 2020 ; 3,000)
Add: Post Acquisilion Profit/(Loss)
Add: Goodwilli{Capital Reserve) on Investment in
Associates

Sushree Trading Limitad

{31st March, 2020 : 5,28,250)
Add: Post Acquisition Profit/(Loss)
Add: Goodwill{Capitzl Reserve) on Investment in
Associates

tn Other Companies
Aakarshak Synthetics Limited
{31st Mareh, 2020 : 17,11,000)

Manav Investment & Trading Company Limited
(31st March, 2020 : 2,67,300)

Rutgers Investment & Trading Company Private Limited
(31st March, 2020 : 72,000)

Total

Aggregate value of quoted investments
Aggregate value of unquoted investments

Az at As at
Face Value Number 3 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
1i4) 4]

5 73,500 48,685,700 22.,56,450
10 1,22.200 2,81,060 2,381,080
10 80,000 2,02, 500 2,02, 500

53,489,260 27.40,010
10 5.73,900 2,10,70,901 2.10,70,901
47,97,42 487 51,87,82437
(27.00,348) {27,00,348)
16,236 16,236
10 3,000 ( ) ¢ )
5,43,71,406 5,43,73,829
46,311 46,311
10 5,28,250 3,61,43.91 3,61,43,911
61,23,78,550 52.42,73.034
{2,07,02,377) (2.07,02,377)
10 17,111,000 1,61,51,200 1,61,51,200
100 267300 - -
100 72000 72,10,000 72.10,000
1,20,36,95,784 1,15.46,32,662
1,20,90,45,044 1,15,73,72,672
5§3,49,260 27,40,010
1,20,36,95,784 1,15,46,32,662
S
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NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)

for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note § ; OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Deposits
Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Total

Note 6 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand
Balances with Banks in

- Current Accounts

Total

Note 7 ; OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid Expenses

Total

Note § : CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance Income Taxes (Net of Provision for taxation as on 31.03.2021 -

Rs.2,00,000, 31 March, 2020- Rs. 2,00,000)
Total

Note 11 : NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision for Gratuity
Total

Note 12 : QTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Security Deposit

Total
Note 13 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Expenses Payable
Other Payable

Total

Note 14 : CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision for Gratuity

Total

As at As at

31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
84) (T}

4,20,200 4,20,200
4,10,608 3,88,051
8,30,808 $,08,251
1,050 3,304
30,852,364 18,48.667
30,53,414 18,51,971
77,686 54,528
77,686 54,528
2265476 43,13,397
22,65,476 43,13,397
4,21,933 3,26,875
4.,21,933 3,26,875
15,00,00,000 15,00,60,000

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

1,94,880 3,44,637
14,980 12,000
2,090,830 3,56,637
1,366 1,058
1,058

1,366




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMTED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Hote 8 : SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars Ap at Asat
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
T )
Authorised:
12.50,000 {March 31, 2020: 12,50,000) Equity Shares, of Rs. 10 par value 1,25,00,000 1.25,00,000
1,25,00,000 1,25.00,000

fssued, Subscribed and Fully Pald up Shares
12,45,000 (March 31, 2020 12,45,000) Equity Shares, of Rs. 10 par value 1,24,50,000 1,24,50,000

Totat 1,24,50.000 1,24,50,000

A} Reconcillation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Share As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020
Description Number X Number (k1]
Number of Shares sutstanding at the beginning of the year 1245000 1,24.50,000 12,45,000 1,24,50,000
Number of Shares issued during the year - - - .
Numiber of Shares outstanding at the end of the year 12.45,000 1,24,60.000 12,456,000 1,24,50,000

Termiright attached to equity shares
The Parant Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equily shares is entitfed to one vote per share,

Dividends, if any, is declared and paid in Indian rupees. The dividend, it any. proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to tha approval of the sharsholders in
the Annual General Meeling. Howewer, no dividend is / was declared on the equity shares for the year ended March 31 2021 / March 31, 2021.

In the event of liquidation of the Parent Gompany, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Parent Company, after
distribwution of all prefarantial amounis. The distribution will be in proportion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

B) List of shareholder holding more than 5 % of the paid up Equity Share Capltal

Name of Equity $hare Holder 31t March, 2021 315t March, 2020
Number % Number %
Aakarshak Synthetics Limited 170,000 13.85% 1,760,000 13.65%
Rulgers Investiments And Trading Company Private Limited 1,12,000 9.00% 1,12,000 9.00%
Sushree Trading Limited 6,22,000 48.96% 6,22,000 49.96%

Kajal Synthetics & Sillkk Mills Limited 2,068,000 16.55% 2,06,000 16.55%




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

for the year ended 31st March, 2021

NOTE 10 : OTHER EQUITY

. As at As at
Particulare 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
1) )
(i) Retained Eamings
Balance as per last Financial Statements (4.63,16,296) (1,78,11,413)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 76,27,202 (2,85,04,883)
Add:Transfer from Special Reserve 92,89,250 -
Total (2,93,99,754} {4,63,16,296)
(ii) Special Reserve
Reserve Fund under RB! Act,1934
Balance as per last Financial Statements 92,689,250 92,89,250
Less: Transferred to Retained Eamings {Refer Note No.32) (92,89 250) -
= 92,898,250

(Hi) FVTOC] Reserves
Balance es per last Financial Statements 1,11,83,26,543 2,24,19,67,557
Net Gain/{Loss) on FVTOCI Investments 26,09,250 {25,06,350)
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) 46,892 (2,85,431)
Net Gzin/{Loss) on FVTOC! Investments of Associates

Osiris Online Private Limited 179 {5,94 97,350

Sushree Trading Limited 8,97.42 471 (57.61,49,723)

Jatayu Textites & industries Limited {56.61,21,169) (48,72,02,160)
Tax gffect on above - -

1,15,26,04,167 1,11,63,26,5643
Total 1,12,32,04,413 1,07,92,99,497

Notes:

Special Reserve : Special reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the
"RBI Act”). Appropriation from this Reserve Fund is permitted only for the purposes specified by RBI.

FVTOCI Reserve : The Parent Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain instruments in
equity securities and debt instruments in Other Comprehensive Income. These changes are accumulated with the FVQCI
reserve within equity, The Parent Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained eamings when the ralevant
equity securities are de-recognised.

R




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Particulars 2020-21 (#) 2019-20 (T)
Note 15 : OTHER INCOME
Rent Received 14,40,000 13,32.000
Dividend Received - 25,725
Interest on Income Tax Refund 1,398,700 2,88,654
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 14,940 73,036
Miscellaneous Income - 42,000
Total 15,894,640 17,61,415
Note 16 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 12,20,400 10,40,250
Gratuity 1,42,259 42,502
Total 13,62,659 10,82,752
Note 17 : FINANCE COSTS
Interest on Inter Corporate Loan - 1,40,274
- 1,40,274
Note 18 . DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipments 70.60,134 87,29,657
Total 70,60,134 87,29,657
Note 19 : OTHER EXPENSES
Advertisement expenses 25,485 18,047
Bank charges 887 670
Conveyance 3912 20,054
Credit Information Membership Fees - 5,900
Custodian / ISIN activation charges 21,240 21,240
Demat Account Charges 944 944
Electricity Charges 7,300 5,530
Filing Fees 3,000 10,800
General Expenses 16,193 10,719
Insurance Charges 90,264 70,068
Legal and Professional Charges 59,835 65,660
Listing Fees 3,54,000 3,54,000
Property Tax 1,02,094 1,02,094
Rent Paid 21,420 20,502
Repairs & Maintenance
On Building 64,248 61,776
Telephone Expenses 13,594 17,479
Travelling Expenses - 38,761
Payment to Auditor
Audit Fees 1,50,000 1,00,000
Limited Review 15,000 15,000
Certification 6,000 5,000
Reimbursement of Tax 30,780 21,600
Total 9,86,196 9,66,934 /




KILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes o the Cansalidated Firanclat Statements {Continued)

for the year ended’ 315t March, 20271

20, Financial inatrument and fair valuy measurement

This sectior explains the judgements and sstimatos m
measured at smertised cost and for which fair vakes
value, the Parant Company has classified its financial

ads in delenmining the fair valuss of 1he financial imatnuments el are
aré disclased in the financial sialements, To provide an indieation about
insirumants into the three Isvels prescribad under the accounting standa

{a) recognisad and meatured af fair value and (b}
the raliabilily of the inpute used in delermining falr
rd. An explanation of eech level foliows undemeath

tha table.
ing Amount Fair Valup
At Falr walup At Falr valua
A & 318t March, 2021 through Profit & c;"“":“";o“'" Amortise Cost | Total Lovel 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Totsl
Loxs prehensive
Incoma
Financlal Axsets
Cash and Cash Equivalanis - - 30,53.414 53414 - - 053414 30,5344
Inveseimerts - 2,87.10460 5,71,98576 B8,59.09035 | 5348260 - 1.20,36,95,784 1.20,90,45,044
Other Financigt Asseis - - § 30,800 6.30.804 - - 830,808 & 30,6008
. 2.87,10,4%0 %.70.82,798 8,97,83,258 | £3.49,260 - 1,20,75,80,006 1,21,29.29,266
Financ|al Liablltas
Homowings. - - . - - - - -
Cther Financiat Liabilities - - 15,00.00,000 | 45,00,00,000 - - 15,00.00,000 15,00.00.000
- - 15,00,00,000 |  15,00,00,000 - - 15,00.00,000 15,00.00,000
Carrying Amount Falr Value
At Falr valuo
Al Fair valug
AswtIistMarch, 2020 | igh Profits obrough x' Amortise Cost | Total Lovel1 |  Lovel2 Lovel 3 Total
Loss mprehenalva
Incoms
Financial Asscts
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 18.51.571 18,541,871 - - 16,51,971 18,5197
invesetmenis - 251,011,210 5.71.88 578 £3299,785 | 2740010 - 1,15.45,32,662 1157372672
Other Financlal Assats - - 8.08.251 B.08.251 - - 8.08,251 B.08 251
- 2,61,01,210 5,99,58,798 8,55, 60008 | 2740010 - 1,16,72.92 884 1,18.00,32.594
Financial Liabltities
Bormowings - - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities - . 15.00.00,000 |  45.00,00,000 - 15,00,0G,000 15.00,00,000
. - 15,00,00,000 15,80,00.000 - - 15,00,.00,000 15,00,00.000

Leval 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial inslruments measired using quoted
price. The fair vaiue of all aquity instrumenls and bonds which are aded in the

valuad using the closing NAY,

Leovel 2: The fair value of financial instuments that are not raded in an active market

pricas. This includes listed aquity instrumends,
stock axchanges is valued uging the dlosing pri

traded borwds and mutual funds that have quolad

ta 8s at the reponing peried. The mutugl funds ara

{for exampla, raded bonds, over-thecounter darivativas) ks datermined using valuation

tachniques which maximise the use of ehservable markel data and rely as litile a5 possibla on enlily-specific astimates, If alt significant inpuls requiced to fair value an instrument
&ra observable, the instrumen! s knchided In hevet 2,

Leval 3: If orve or more of the significam hpc.ﬂaisnmbmdonohmablemmda!a. the ingirument

The carrying amounts of trade recsivables, trada

tafm naluwrs,

iv included in tevel 3

For firancial assats and liabillies thal are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts am aqual 1o the fair values.

payablas, capilal creditors and cash and cash equivalants are consicared to ba the same as thalr fair valuss, dua 1o their shor-




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LINITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
for the year endsd 315t March, 2021

1 Capital Management:
The primary objectives of the Parent Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Parent
Company complies with externally Imposed capital requirements and maintains strong cradit ratings and healthy
capital ratios in order 1o support its business and to maximise sharsholers value,

The Parent Company manages its capital structure and mekes adjustments to it according to changes in
econamic conditions and the risk characteristios of its activities. Capital Management Policy, objectives and
processes are under constan review by the Board.

22 Financial Risk Managament Objectives and Policies:

The Parent Company's principal financial fiabilites comprise  Security Deposits and Provisions. The Parent
Company's financial assets indude Investments and Cash and Cash equivalents that derive directly from its
oparations.

The Parent Company is exposed lo credit risk, liguidity risk and market rigk. The Parent Company’s board of
directors has an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Parent Company's risk
management framework, The board of directors has established the risk management commitiee, which is
responsitle for developing and monitering the Parent Company's risk management policles. The commities
reports 10 the board of directors on its activilies.

The Parent Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Parent Company, to set appropriate risk fimits and controls and to maniter risks and adherence to limits, Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Parent
Company’s activilies,

The Parent Company’s risk management commitiee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Parent Company's risk managemenl policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the rizk
management frameawork in relation to the risks faced by lhe Parent Company.

1) Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Parent Company if a customer fails to meet ds contractual
obligations and arises principatly from the Parent Company's receivables from customers and loans. The
carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum eredit rigk exposure.

Invastments

The major invesiments of the Parent Company is in the group companies which includes investment in an
assotiate.

Cash and cash equivalent and Bank deposits

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank deposits is limited as the fund are in Current Account and
sometimes in invests in term deposits with banks.

2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk i the rigk that the Parent Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated
with its financial llabiliies, The Parent Company’s appraach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have
sufficient furds to meet its liabilities when due,

The Parent Company is monitoring its liquidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outfiows during the start
of the year and planned accordingly the funding requirement. The Parent Company manages its liquidity by
term Inans, inter-corporate deposit and investment in mutwal funds,

The table below summarises the malurity profile of the Parent Company's non-derivalive financial liabilites
based on confractual undiscounted payments along with its carmying value as at the balance sheet date.

Ag at 31 March, 2024

Partleular More than 12
Up to 12 months months Total
Security Deposit 15,00,00,0:00 - 15,00,00),000
As at 31 March, 2020
Particular More than 12
Up to 12 months monthe Total
Security Deposit 15.00,00,000 - 15.00,00,000
3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of
change_g, i‘n_ market prices.

Mgrﬁé!_ ﬁgk mcludes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk, The objective of market risk management is 1o
mARage and conlrel market risk exposures within acceptable paramedlers, while optimizing the return.

Ak 1

1 | v




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the Consolldated Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

23 Income Taxes & Deferred Taxes {Ind AS -12)

There are no Income Tax recognised during the financial year. Further, in absence of near probability of taxable
profits in future periods, the Parent Company has not recagnised Deferred Taxes.

24 Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans (Ind AS - 19)

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity:

The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee's service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving
the services of the Parent Company and is in accordance with the rules of the Parent Company for payment of
gratuity,

Inherent Risk:

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Parent Company and hence it underwrites all the
risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, this exposes the Parent Company to actuarial risk such as adverse salary
growth, change in demographic exparience, inadequate return on underying plan assets, This may reésult in an
increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the
plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

Statement of Assets and Liabilities for Defined Benedit Obtigation :

For the year For the year ended
anded March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021

Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans
(i) Change in present value of obligation

PYQ at the beginning of period 3,27,933 -
interest cost 22,299 -
Current Service cost 1,19.960 42,502

Past Service Cost - (Non-Vested Benefits) - -
Past Service Cost - (Vested Benefits) - -
Benefit settled - -
Contribution by participants - -
Business Combinations - -
Curtaiments - -
Settlements - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation {46,893) 2,85,431
PVO at the end of perind 4,235,299 3,27,933

(it) Changes in the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of periog - -
Adjustment to Opening Balance - -

Expected return on plan assets exd, interest income . -
Interest Income - -
Contributions by Employer - -
Contributions by Employse - -
Benefits Paid - -

Fair value of plan assets at end of period - -

{iliy Amount to be recognised in Balanee Sheat

PVQ at the end of period 423,298 3,27,933
Fair value of plan assets at end of yaar - -
Funded Status (4,23,200) (3,27,933)

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet - {4,23,299) {3,27,033)




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes te the Consolidated Finangial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

{iv) Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service cost
Net Interest cost
Past Service Cost - (Non-Vested Benefits)
Past Service Cost - {Vested Benefits)
Curtailment Effect
Setitement Effect
Unrecognised Past Service Cost (Non-vested Benefits)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised for the periad
Return on plan assets excl. net interest
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

{v} Other Comprehensive Income {OCI)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period
Asset limit effect
Return on Plan Assets excl. net interest
Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from previous period
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in {OCI)

{vi) Movement in the Jiability recognised In Balance Sheet
Liability at the beginning of the peried
Adjustment to Opening Balance
Expenses
Contribution paict
Other Comprehensive (ncome {OCI)
Net amount recognised in Balance Sheet

{vii) Expected Payout

(46,893)
1,42,259

{46,893)

{46,893)

3,27.933
1,42,259

{46,893)
423,299

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

15t Following ‘Year
2nd Following Year
3rd Following Year
4th Following Year
5th Following Year
Sum of Years 6 To 10

{vii) Assumptions
Mortality
Interest / Discount Rate
Rate of Incraase in Compensation
Expected Average Remaining Age
Employee Attrition rate

{ix) Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions
Projected Benefit Obligation on Cumrent Assumptions
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Satary Increase
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

1,366
1,521
1,720
1,933
2282
16,764

2,85,431

327,933

285,431

285431

42,602

285431
327,933

1,217
1,361
1,525
1,710
1,820
13,968

IALM (2006-08) UH. 1ALM (2006-08) Uk,

8.79%
12.00%
18.93
PS 0 to 60 : 0.80%

423,283
344277
522,350
5,15,931
347,249

€.80%
12.00%
19.74
PS 01060:0.80%

3.27,933
3,07,368
4,76,293
4,70,165
3,10,143



NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Flnancial Statements {Continued)
for the yesr ended 31st March, 2021

Narrations

1. Expected rate of raturn basis

Scheme is not funded EQRA is not applicable

2. Description of Plan Assets and Reimbursement Conditions

100% of the Plan Asset is entrusted to 0 under their Group Gratuity Scheme, The reimbursement is subject to
insurer's Surrender Policy.

3. Investment / Interest Risk

The Parent Company is exposed to Investment / Interest risk if the return on the invested fund falls below the
discount rate used to arrive at present value of the benefit.

4, Longevity Risk

The Parent Company is not exposed to risk of the employees living longer as the benefit under the scheme
ceases on the employee separating from the employer for any reason,

5. Risk of Salaty Increase

The Parent Company is exposed to higher liability if the future salaries rise more than assumption of salary
escalation,

6. Discount Rate

The discount rate has remain unchanged and henca there is no change in fiability resulting in no actuarial gain or
loss due to change in discount rate.

25 Related Party Disclosures (Ind AS - 24)
A. Name of refated parties and related party relationship:
Key Management Personnel

G. M, Loyalka Director
Manish Newar Director
R. D. Bhatter Director
Rajshree Tapurizh Director
Nitin Agarwal Managing Director
Anil Londhe Chief Financial Officer
Shruit Didwania Company Secretary

B Following transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of business with the paities referred to in (A)

above;
Particulars Forthe year |For the year ended
ended March 34, | March 31, 2020
2024
i. |Salarigs, Bonus and Allowances 13,682,659 10,82,752

The remuneration of key management persannel are determined by the nomination and remumneration commities
having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

C Disclosures as per Regulation 53(f) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 201 5). Loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies in which
directors are interested as under:




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes te the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
for the yesr onded 31st March, 2021

Period Balance of Loans | Maximum balance
as at outstanding durin
the year
31st March, 2021 - -
J1st March, 2020 - -
Note : Related Parties are disclosed by the management and relied upon by the auditors.
26 Earnings Per Share (Ind AS - 33)
Particulars Forthe year |For the year ended
ended March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021
Net Profit{Loss) After Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 76,27,292 (2,85,04,883)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 12.45,000 12,45,000
Basic and Diluted eamings per $Share {In Rs.) 6.13 (22.90)
Nominal Value Per Share (In Rs.) 10.00 10.00

Note : The Parent Company does not have any dilutive
eamnings per share of the Parent Company remain the same.

27 Contingent Liabilities not provided {Ind AS - 37)
a. Estimated amount of contracts remainin
Rs. Nil).

b. Other Contingent Liabiiities not provided for - Rs. Nil {PY - Rs. Nil).

28 Segment Reporting {Ind AS - 108)

potential equity shares. Consequentty the basic and diluted

g 10 be exacuted on capital account and not provided for — Rs. Nil (PY -

The Parent Company operates mainly in the business segment of fund based leasing & financing activity. All other

activities revolve around the main business. Further, all activities a
separate reportable segments as per the provisions of IND AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments',
29 Leases (Ind AS - 116)

Ind AS 116 did not have any material impact on the financial positicn of the Parent Company
March 31, 2021.

30 Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Based on the intimation received by the Parent Com

re caried out within India, As such, there are no

for the year ended

pany, none of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered

under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED') Act, 2006°, Accordingly, no disclosures

relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid /payable are required to

be fumished.

3 The provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to investment and lending activities were not
applicable to the Parent Company since the Parent Company was an NBFC whose principal business was
acquisitions of securities. Further, during the year, the Parant Company has not provided any guarantee (Refer Note

No. 27).




NILKANTH ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

for the year endad 315t March, 2021

32 Pursuant to the RBI ietter having ref. 12874141 2-14-023/2018-19 dated 17.03.2020, the Parent Cornpany, vide its
reply letter daled 12.08.2020, has surrendered its Original Certificate of Registration issued by the RBI stating that
the principal business of the Parent Cornpany is no longer that of a NBFC.

Caonsequently, concolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 is presented as per the format
applicable to Non-NBFC Companies and previous year's figures are also restated accordingly,

Further, an amount of Rs.92,89,250/- appearing as at the begining of the period towards Special Reserve required to
be maintained under Reserve Fund under RBI Act 1934 has been transferred to Retained Eamings since principal
business of the Parent Company is no longer that of a NBFC.

33 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to lnvestor Education & Protection Fund as at March 3,
2021

34 While determining diminution, other than temporaty, in the value of the long term quoted / unquoted investments, the
strategic objective of such investments and the asset base of the investee companigs have been considered, In
view thereof, the decline in the market value of such investments is considered to be of 2 temporary nature.

35 COVID-19 outbreak declared as a global pandernic by the WHO has sontinued to spread rapidly leading to extension
of nationwide lockdown with minor exemptions and quarantine measures stalling economic activity. The Parent
Company has been in operstion with minimal pemitted staff. The Company has not faced any material adversity of
its financial position as at March 31, 2021 and considering other relevant facts and circumstances exisling as of that
date, the Parent Company does not anticipate any material uncartainties which affects it tiquidity position and afso
ability to continue as a going concern. However, the impact of the global heaith pandemic may differ from that
estimated as at the date of approval of the financial results and the Parent Company will continue to clogely monitor
and material changes to future economic conditions.

38 In the opinion of the Board, the Current assets, and Loans and Advances have a value on realisation in the ordinary
course of the business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the books of account and adequate
Provision has been made of founds all known liabilities.

37 a) Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary to correspond with the
figure of the current peried.

b) Figures have been rounded off to nearest nipee.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KARNAVAT & CO,

Chartered Accountants =
Firm Regn. No. 1 W 0,

— _.I!-("".,'_'-:‘"'!/ .', ‘ .I'I-I \g- bl P = o
g | (GM.LO ) (NITTN AGARWAL)
W2\ Ly Director Managing Director
. n ' DIN: 00299415 DIN: 08186528
Membership No: 137686
j} / Qs

Place : Mumbai {Shruti Didwania) {Anil Londhe)
Date; June 29, 2021 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

UDIN : 21137686 AAAAGQS5452




- CIN NO: L27300MH1983PL.C029360
Regd. Office: 407, Kalbadevi Road, Daulat Bhiawsan, 3™ Floor, Mumbai— 400 002,
Emall : pilkanthengineeringltd@email.com
Website: www.nilkanthengineering.co.in

PROXY FORM

Name of the- member(s):
Reglstered address:

Eemail I
Folio No,

Ve being a mem’barf{s}-of.—' shared of the above Aarmed company, Rersby-agpoint

1. Name : of

Esmail 1d: : or failing:Him
Z Namé:___ _ of . s

E-mail 1d: - or failing Bim

3 Name: of _

E-mail Id;

and-whoeq signatures are appended below as my:/ our proxy te attend. and vote fon a poll}.for mefus and on
mylour behali-at the 28" Annual General Megting of the. Company to be held on the Wednesday, 29™ day of
September, 2021 -at 4.30. pm: and at any adjournment thereef in respact of sech resclitibns as are indicated
below:

*] wish my abeve proxy-16 vote in the manner as indicated below:

[Resolutions "  For__| Against
1.To consider and. .adept the Audited Financlal Statements inciuding audited
| conselidated. financial statements of the: Company for the financial year ended March |
-31,.2021, togetherwith the reports of the Board af Directors and-the Auditers thereon.

| 2.Te-appoint a Director in piaceof M. Nitit . Agrawal (DIN No: 08186528} who retires by
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- specified under section 186 of the-Companies. Act, 2013
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e . ; Aflx
: - Rupeg 1 |
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Stamp
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3. Plaase puta X in the-appropriate eolumn agalnst the resolutions ndisated In‘the Box
4. Appointing & proxy doas notprevent @ member fram attending-the meeting in person if he sawishes.
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